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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the School Committee of the
Gateway Regional School District:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities, sach major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Gateway Regional School District of the Commonweaith of Massachusetts (the "District”) as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibiiity of the District's management. Our responsibifity is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are fres of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial posttion of the
governmental activifies, the business-type activiies, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Gateway
Regional School District as of June 30, 2009, and the respechive changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and
the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report dated October 28, 2008 on our consideration of the
District's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of iaws, reguiations, confracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards and important for
assessing the results of our audit. :

The management's discussion and analysis beginning on page 2.1, is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain
fimited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the District's basic
financial statements. The combining and other schedules, are presented for purposes of addifional analysis; and the accompanying schedule
of expendifures of federal awards is aiso presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and
Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements of the District. The combining and other schedules, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards have been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. _

Stanley H. Kulas, CPA

STANLEY H. KULAS
Cerfified Public Accountant

Qctober 28, 2009
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GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

As management of the Gateway Regional School District of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, we offer readers of
the District's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2009. We encourage readers fo consider the information presented here in conjunction with
additional information provided throughout this document.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

On a government-wide basis:

The assets of the Disfrict exceeded its liabiliies at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $31,181,744 and
by $57,151 for the governmental and business-type acfivities, respectively.(Exhibit A)

The District’s total net assets for governmental activities decreased by $899,140 and decreased by $2,338 for
the business-type activities.(Exhibit B}

The District's long-term obligafions decreased by $502,717 to $8,766,617 for governmental activities and
decreased by $27,500 to $61 for business-type activifies during the year.

On a governmental fund basis:

-

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the District's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $2,226,310 (Exhibit C), an increase of $641,586 in comparison with the prior year (Exhibit D).

As of June 30, 2009, the School Roof Repair Fund had a deficit balance of $114,000. This deficit results from
the accounting convention of recognizing revenue from debt only upon the issuance of permanent financing. As
of June 30, 2009, bond anticipation notes {temporary debf) of $114,000 have been issued fo finance the roof
repair. This deficit should be eliminated in subsequent years with financing from the general fund.

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $866,807 (Exhibit C), or
5% of next year's budgeted general fund expenditures of $17,115,511.

The District's bond anticipation notes decreased by $57,000 to $114,000 during the current fiscal year.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended fo serve as an infroduction fo the District's basic financial statements. The
District's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements; 2) fund
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information
in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.



GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers
with a broad overview of the District's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on al of the District's assets and fiabilities, with the difference between
the two reported as net assets. Over fime, increases or decreases in net assets/(liabilities) may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the District's net assets/(liabilities) changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise fo the change
oceurs, regardiess of the timing of relefed cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for
some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods {e.g. uncollected state grants are recognized as
receivables due from other governments, and earned but unused vacation leave is recognized as a labiiity for

compensated absences).

Both of the government-wide financial statemenis distinguish functions of the District that are principally supported by
assessments and infergovemmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover
all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The District has one
business-type activity to “sell” laptop computers to students which it treats as an enterprise fund. The govemmental
acfivities of the District include administration, instruction, ancillary school charges, maintenance and operations,
insurance and other fixed charges, programs with other schools, transportation, and capital improvements.

The government-wide financial statements can be found in Exhibits A and B of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of refated accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting o ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-refated legal requirements. All of the funds of the District
can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmenta! funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, uniike the govemnment-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as
well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in

evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of govemmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful
to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for govemnmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact
of the government's near-term financing decisions. Reconciliations to facilitate this comparison between governmental
funds and governmental activities are provided in Exhibit C and Exhibit K - Note 2.

The District maintains various individual govemmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental

. fund balance sheet (Exhibit C) and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances (Exhibit D} for the general fund, the debt service fund, the state payments on-behalf of teacher refirement fund,
and the school buildings construction and renovation fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the
other governmental funds are combined into a single aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these
nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining schedules 1 through 6 in this report.
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GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been
provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget (Exhibit E).

The basic govemmental fund financial statements can be found in Exhibits C through E of this report

Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The District uses an enterprise fund to account for its lease purchase of laptop computers from
vendors and its subsequent lease sale of these lapiops to its students. The accounfing for this enterprise fund is the
accrual basis. '

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found in Exhibits F, G, and H of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of
those funds are not available to support the District's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is the
accrual basis.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found in Exhibits | and J of this report.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the govemment-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic
financial statements can be found in Exhibit K of this report.

Other information. The combining schedules referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are
presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements. Combining and individual fund schedules and
other types of schedules can be found in Schedules 1 through 9 of this report.



GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Summary of the major features of the government-wide and fund financial statements.

f—eneeeFund Financial Statementg—--—--——1
Government-wide
Statemenis Governmental Proprietary Fiduciary
Scope Entire District (except | The activity of the Activities the District | Assets held by the
fiduciary funds) District that is not operates similar to District on behalf of
proprietary or private businesses. someone else.
fiduciary, such as Students and other
general government, organizations that
public safety, and have funds on
education. deposit with the
District are reporied
here.
Required financial Statement of net Balance sheet, and Statement of net Statement of fiduciary
statements assets, & statement | statement of assets, and net assets, and
of activities revenues, statement of statement of changes
expenditures and revenues, expenses | in fiduciary net
changes in fund and changes in net assefs.
balance. assets, and
statement of cash
fiows,
Basis of accounting | Accrual accounting Modified accrual Accrual accounting Accrual accounting
and measurement accounting.
focus. Economic resources Economic resources | ECONOMIC resources
focus Current financial focus focus
resources focus
Type of asset and All assets and Generally, assets Alt assets and Alf assets and
liability information fliabilities, both expected to be used | liabilifies, both fiabiiities, both
financial and capital, | up and liabilities that | financial and capital; | financial and capital;
short-term and long- | come due during the | short-term and long- | short-ferm and long-
term year or soon ferm term. These funds do
thereafter. No capital not currently contain
asserts or iong-term any capital assets,
liabilities included although they can

Type of inflow and
outfiow information

All revenues and
expenses during the
year, regardiess of
when cash is
received or paid

Revenues for which
cash is received
during or soon after
the end of the year,
expenditures when
goods or services
have been received
and the related
fiability are due and
payable

Alf revenues and
expenses during the
year, regardiess of
when cash is
received or paid.

Al additions or
deductions during the
year, regardless of
when cash is
received or paid
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GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earfier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a district’s financial position. At the close of the
most recent fiscal year, the District's assets exceeded liabilities by $31,181,744 and by $57,151 for its governmental and
business-type activities, respectively (Exhibit A).

By far the largest portion of the District's net assefs reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings,
leasehold improvements, machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used fo acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to provide services to school children; consequently, these assets are
not available for future spending. Although the District's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed fo repay this debt must be provided from other services, since the capital
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these fiabilities.

DISTRICT'S NET ASSETS
Amounts
Governmental Activitles Business-Type Activities Totals
Description 2009 2008 2009 2008 2008 2008

Currentandotherassels . ................. $ 2516865 § 1954713 § 57212 § 87050 § 2573877 § 2041763
Capital assets., .. ..o .oovvninr e 38,691,504 39875885 - - 38,691,504 30,876,685

Tollassels . ... e 41,208,169 41,831,398 57,212 87,050 41265381 41918448
Bond anficipationnotes .. ................. 114,000 171,000 . - 114000 174,000
Other current fiabilifies ... ................. 801,181 888,936 61 22,959 B01,242 811,895
Longderm liabilites ... ...... ...l 9,111,244 8,690,578 - 4,602 8,111,244 8,695,180

Totalliabiffles . .................o0hls 10,026,425 9,750,514 61 27 561 10,026 488 9,778,075
Net assels:
Invested in capifal assefs, net of retated debt .. 30,306,808 30,929,508 - - 30,308,508 30,825,508
Restricted ... oot et 1,108,340 634,026 - - 1,108,340 634,026
Unrestricted . . .oovver i {234,404) 517,350 57,151 59,489 {(177,253) 576,838

Totabnetassels............cooivniinis $ 31181744 § 32080884 $ 57151 § 50480 § 31,238,885 § 32,140,373

A portion of the District's net assets at June 30, 2009, $1,109,340, represents resources that are subject to extemnal
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets $(177,253), is further
segregated by intemal designations as shown below.

Govemnmental Proprietary

Description Type Type Totals
Designated for subsequent year's budget . . .. .. $ 496,084 $ 57151 § 553,235
Undesignated and unreserved . .............. {730,488) - {730,488
Total unrestricted netassets . ........... $ (234404) § 57,151 § (177,263)




- GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the District's net assets by $899,140 and $896,093 for
fiscal years 2009 (Exhibit B) and 2008, respectively. Key elements of these changes are as follows:

DISTRICT'S CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Amount
Description 2008 2008
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for SemviCes . .. ...t cev e $ 326274 $§ 443,388
Member town assessmentS . . ... e e 1,353,354 1,301,392
IVESHEMENtINCOME . . . oottt 141 177
[8]111 T PRI 43,484 79,468
Operating grants and contributions .. ............ooovnn 6,289,971 5,304,307
General revenues:
Assessmentstomemberfowns . ... o 8,668,741 8,337,280
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs ... .. .. 5,356,783 5,921,631
MISCEIEBNBOUS . . . oottt iir e 53,787 36,602
InVestMENt INCOME . .. i i e 44,369 54,293
TOtAl TEVETILES « o ot v e vt e et ettt 22,142,904 21,478,548
Expenses:
AGIINISIBHON . ..\ ot e e e 926,049 859,140
SITUCHON . . o oo et i 10,520,523 10,244,076
Ancillary school SEIVICES . ... ..o oie 1,125,161 1,054,135
Transportation . . ..o vo i 1,639,006 1,543,148
Maintenance and operations .. ... 1,630,297 1,725,247
Insurance and employee benefits......... .. e 4,866,757 4,428,577
Programs with ofherschools . .. ... 1,177,851 1,104,976
Capital IMProvements . ..., ..ooveve v 7,363 -
Unallocated depreciation . .. .......oovvii i 983,266 1,032,533
DEBE SOIVICE . . v v vt e 365,781 382,809
TOtal BXPENSES . . oo\ o vvei e 23,042,044 22,374,641
Change innetassels ... ..ot vvre i $ (899,140) § (896,093

« Revenues related to member town assessments increased by $383,413 or 3.98%.
« Revenues related to operating grants and contributions increased by $420,816 or 3.75%.




GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Business-fype activities. Business-type activities decreased the District's net assets by $2,338 as gross revenues of
$28,551 from the sale of computers and interest income of $1,276 were offset by $32,165 of expenses.

FINANACIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements,

Governmental funds. The focus of the District's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outfiows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is usefu! in assessing the District's financing
requirements, in particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Disfrict's govemmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$2,226,310 (Exhibit C), an increase in the baiance of $641,586 in comparison with the prior year (Exhibit D). A summary
of the components comprising these balances is described below.

Balance Balance

Description 06/30/08 06/30/08
Reserved for designated expenditures . ... ... ..ot $ 844855 § 202338
Reserved to reduce subsequent years' assessments . ... ... ol 496,084 487,250
Reserved fo segregrate assets associated for food services inventory ... ......... .. 5446 4,688
Reservedtopaydebtservice .. ... i 13,118 14,153
Unreserved - avaitable for spending at the government's discretion .. .............. B66,807 B76,295
Total fund balances . .. ... i e e e $ 2226310 § 1,584,724

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the District. At the end of the cument fiscal year, fotal fund balance was
$1,220,042 (Exhibit C) of which $866,807 was the unreserved fund balance. As a measure of the general fund liquidity, it
may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total general fund expenditures and
fransfers for the cument year. Unreserved fund balance represents 5.20% of fofal general fund expenditures and
fransfers, while fotal fund balance represents 7.31% of that same amount. These results are compatible with the 5.08%
and 6.43% associated with the prior fiscal year.

The fund balance of the District's general fund increased by $112,497 during the cument fiscal year (Exhibits D). Key
factors in this change are (Exhibit E):

« Useof $231,250 of beginning fund balance to finance current year's operations.
«  Cument expenditures for instruction, insurance, transportation and the like were $1,197,604 less than budgeted
primarily because $628,548 of instructional salaries were reclassified to the recovery act special fund.
e State aid transportation and Chapter 70 revenues were $208,557, and $629,548 less than budgeted,
' respectively.

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $13,118, all of which is reserved for the payment of debt service.
During fiscal 2009, $1,035 was transferred to the general fund to finance debt service expenditures (Exhibit D).

State payments on-behalf of the teacher retirement program totaling $2,322,864 and $1,815,132 for fiscal 2009 and
2008 were made directly by the Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System for the benefit of District teachers (Exhibit
D).



GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The District's original fiscal 2009 budget of $17,882,520 did not change during the year; however, there were some
minor changes reclassifying amounts between individual line items (Exhibit ).

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets. The District's investment in capital assets as of the end of the current fiscal year amounts to
$39,691,504 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes buildings, leasehold
improvements, machinery and equipment, vehicles, furniture and fixtures, iand, and computer equipment.

The major capital asset event during the current fiscal year was $1,431,080 of depreciation expense. A summary of
District capital assets at June 30, 2009 and June 30, 2008 is presented below.

DISTRICT'S CAPITAL ASSETS (net of depreciation)

Amount
Description 2009 2008

Bulldings . ..o $ 31,327,633 § 32,102,472
Leasehold improvements .. ........... 7,081,769 7,240,910
Computers . ........coveeviiviinans 179,853 188,541
Machinery and equipment . ........... 44,863 51,940
Fumiture and fixtures .. .............. 26,109 246,885
Land .o 17,250 17,250
Veliohes ... .o e 14,027 27 687

Total capital assefs . ............... $ 38,691,504 § 39,876,685

Additional information on the District's capital assets can be found in Exhibit K - Note 4 of this report.
Short-term debt. At the end of fiscal year 2009 and 2008, the District had totel bond anticipation notes outstanding of

$114,000 and $174,000, respectively; alt of which is debt backed by the full faith and credit of the District and its member
towns. The District's total short-term obligation is comprised of bond anticipation notes to finance school roof repairs.
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GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Long-term debt. At the end of fiscal year 2009 and 2008, the District’s governmental activities had long-term obligation
outstanding of $8,766,617 and $9,269,334, respectively; comprised of the foliowing components.

DISTRICT'S OUTSTANDING LONG-TERM OBLIGATION

Amount
Description 2009 2008
Bonds payable. . ... .. cooeaiiei e $ 8255000 $ 8,680,000
Notes payable. .. ........ooveenen 2,800 5,039
Compensated absences . ........... 474,238 461,187
Capital lease obligations. . .......... 15,696 08,177
Early refirement liability . ........... 7,955 15,320
Unamortized bond premium....... .. 10,928 11,611
Total outstanding debt . .......... $ 8766617 $ 9,260,334

The District's business-type activifies paid off $27 500 of its capital lease obligations during the fiscal year lowering its
balance from $27,561 at the beginning of the year to $61 at year-end.

The District maintains a "BBB+" rating from Standard & Poor's on its general obligation debt. Additional information on
the District's iong-term and short-term debt can he found in Exhibit K - Note 4 of this report.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

The Gateway Regional School District is dependent on the State of Massachusetts as well as seven member towns for
the funding of the budget. Five of the seven towns must approve the school budget on an annual basis. The Gateway
District is located in the Berkshires and is part of both Hamden and Hampshire County. There is fitfle industry within the
district, with the schoo! district being the largest employer. Primary business within the district includes small general
stores, self-employed contractors, restaurants, and heaith centers. '

e The Gateway Regional School district had an increase of Chapter 70 of approximately 1.1% providing an
additionat $64,700 in state revenues.

o Financial implications affecting the FY 08 budget were the following:
»$231,250 was used from E & D to offset the budget.

« Atthe end of the FY '08 fiscal year, unreserved balance for the general fund was $870,764 or 487% of FY '09's
budgeted general fund expenditures of $17,882,520.



GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

" These factors were considered in preparing the District's budget for the 2010 fiscal year.

State chapter 70 funds for the District were reduced by two percent ($119,727) to $5,866,604.
Regional transportation reimbursement is expected to be funded at  total amount of $553,004 (56%).

The total FY 10 budget is approximately 4.3% ($767,008) lower than FY '09 refiecting a decrease of $52,006
(-.052%} in total assessment fo the towns.

The district's share of the building project ($9,767,000) is permanently bonded and those costs will be refiected
in the Non-Discretionary budget to the towns.

The minimum contributions component of town assessments established by the Commonwealth of
Massachusefts are expected fo increase by approximately 3.8% providing an additional $213,355 of
assessment revenues.

The District's proposed FY 2010 operating budget is requesting $2,168,537 of town assessments above the
minimum contribution amounts established by the Commonwealth.

The District will be using $353,235 out of excess and deficiency to reduce fown assessments.

District foundation enroliment has decreased by 35 students.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

The ﬁnéncial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District's finances for all those with an inferest in the
government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
financial information should be addressed to the Office of the Business Manager, Gateway Regional School District, 12

Littleville Road, Huntington, MA G1050.

2-10 (Concluded)




GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICY

EXHIBIT A

GOVERNMENT-WIDE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2009
Business-
Type
Govern- Activities
mental Laptop
Activities Program Totals

Assets:

Pooled Cash . ... i 2,349,247 54,412 2,403,659

Due from othergovernments .. .................... 161,972 - 161,972

Notesrecelvable -cument. ... ... .ol - 2,800 2,800

VBIIOMY . oo 5,448 - 5,446

Capita! assets - net of accumulated depreciation .. . ... 38,691,504 - 38,691,504
L0 R PO 41,208,169 57,212 41,265,381
Liabilities:

Current unamortized premium from bond issuance . .. .. 883 - 683

Current portion of bondspayable . .................. 440,000 - 440,000

Currentporion of notes payable . .................. 2,800 - 2,800

Current portion of early refirement liability .. .......... 7,955 - 7,955

Current portion of capital lease obligations . .......... 7024 61 7,085

Current portion of compensated absences........... 37,238 - 37,238

Accrued inferest payable . . ... et 166,364 . 166,384

Accrued payrolt . ... 2,576 - 2,578

Payrofl withholdings . . ...t 136,541 - 136,541

Bond anficipationnofes..............o e 114,000 - 114,000

Other post-employrnent benefitobligation............. 840,327 - 840327

Noncurent unamortized premium from bond issuance . 10,245 - 10,245

Noncurrent porfion of bonds payable ................ 7,815,000 - 7,815,000

Noncurrent portion of capital lease obligations . ....... 8,672 - 8,672

Noncurrent portion of compensated absences. ........ 437,000 - 437,000
TotalBabiliies . . ... e 10,026,425 61 10,026,486
Net agsets:

invested in capital assets, netof related debt .. ... .... 30,306,808 - 30,306,808

Resficted . ..o 1,109,340 - 1,109,340

Unrestricted . .. .. ..o oo e {234,404) 57,151 (177,253)
Total netassets. ... v i e s 31,181,744 57,151 31,238,885

See accompanying notes fo the basic financial statements.



GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL BISTRICT

EXHIBIT B

GOVERNMENT-WIDE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
Net (Expanses) Revenues and
Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets
Expenses Operating
for all Member Granlis Govem- Business-
Fungiionsand Charges for Town Investment and mental Type
Functions/Programs Programs Services  Asgsessments  Income {Other Contributions Activities Activities Totals
Govemmental activities:
Administrafion .. .....oovi i 026,049 - - - - - (626,049} - (826,040}
(110510 s PP PP 10,520,523 5018 - - 31,364 2,663,441 {7,820,700} - (7820700
Anciltary school semvices. ... ..o e oueenns 1,125,161 204,057 - - 6,224 310,497 (514,383} - {514,383}
Transportation .. .. ...coveniveneneeoan, 1,539,006 - 557 559 141 - 953,169 11,863 - 11,863
Maintenancs and operaions .. .......... 1,530,287 27,199 - “ 11,885 “ {1.491,202) - {1491,202)
Insurance and smployee benefits. .. ...... 4,868,757 - - - - 2,322,864 (2,543,803} - (2,543,893)
Programs with other schools . . .......... 1,177 854 - - - - - {1,477.851) - {4,177,851)
Capital improvements ... .....oovvennnns 7,363 - “ B - - {7,363) - {7.363)
Unaliocated depregiation (. ..........oo 983,256 - - - - - {983,256} - {983,256}
Principat associated with renovation bonds . - - 425,000 - - - 425,000 - 425,000
Interest associaied with renovation bonds ., 358,081 - 264,085 - - - 5,014 - 5,014
Interest associated withbans . ........ .. 6,700 - 6,700 - - - ~ - -
Total govemmental activities. .. ... 23,042,044 326274 1,353,304 141 40484 6289571 (15,022,820 - (15022,820)
Business-type activity - laptop program.. ... 32,165 28,551 - 1,276 .- “ - {2,338} (2,338)
TOMIS . o vvvarererrnnnrraariainrens 23,074,208 354825 1,353,354 1417 40484 5280071 (15,022,820} (2,338) (15025,158)
General revenues:
ASSEESINANTS 50 MMENDEI TOWIIS .+ 1 teseenae canssannrrob e s siname e onen s st ama aao s et st as s r v a b sar s aree 8,668,741 - 8,668,741
State and federal aid not restricted to Spetific PUIPOSES L ... oveit i §,356,783 - 5,356,783
BVEEEIANEOUS &+ v v v v onsn e e mmneomne s dn s ts s aba s sy e g A e e et e 53,787 - 53,787
FWVESTTIENEMICOMIB -+ 2 v s v vae e e eine snbeme s nae e sn e bn s s e b b n e b s a b st st s s st 44,369 - 44,360
TOM) GEMETEI TBVEMMIES . ...e.s s scaras s een e tasas s e s e s aar e es st s n s b st e 14,123,680 - 14,123,680
CENGES I BLASSES . . o, v« ve e sssassems s s s res sy ar e s e e e e s s b e s s e s (899,140} {2,338) (901,478}
Nt aSSels - DEGIMAING OF 18 YA ... . ouereraniinan e e s im et ma s e s r e 32,080,884 59489 32,140,373
T T L R CLETELT R L RE AL R R R R AR 31,181,744 571561 31,238,885

{*) - This fine lier excluties depreciation expensed directly to various programs totafing $448,724. ($983,256 + 348,724 = $1,431,080 totat depreciation expense)

See accompanying nofes to the basic financial statements.
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EXHIBIT C
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICY

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2009
Other
Debt Nonmazjor Total
General Service  Govemnmental Govemnmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds
Assets
POl B8R . ..ot e 1,398,397 13,118 939,732 2,349,247
Due from other governments . .. .. ..o i e e - - 161,972 161,972
T2 3 - - 5448 5,446
o1 T A 1,396,397 13,118 1,107,150 2,516,665
Liabilities and fund balances
Ligbilities:
Payrol withholdings . . ... ... i 136,541 - - 136,541
Accrued payroll . . . e 2,576 - - 2,576
Compensated absences . ........... e e e 37,238 - . 37,238
Bondanticipationnotes . .. ... - - 114,000 114,000
Total liabilities . ... .o e 176,355 - 114,000 296,355
Fund balances:
Reserved forinventory . ... ... .o e - - 5446 5,446
Reserved fordeblservice . .. .. ..o i i e e - 13,118 - 13,118
Reserved for designated expenditures . ... ... .t - - 844,855 844,855
Reserved {o reduce subsequent years' assessments . ................... 353,235 - 142,849 435,084
Urreserved - available forappropriation . ... 868,807 - - 866,807
Totab fund balances . .. ... e 1,220,042 13,118 993,150 2,226,310
Tota! lisbiitles and fund balances .. ... i 1,396,397 13,118 1,107,150
Reconciliation fo government-wide statement of net assets:
Amounts reporfed for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Capital assets used in govemmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not
reported in the govemmental funds statement:
Gross capial @858L5 . . ... e e e 51,260,237
Less: Accumulated depreciation . . ... ... e e (12,568,733)
L) R 38,691,504
Long-term Habilities, including early retirement, capital lease obligations and compensated absences, are not
due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds sfatement:
BORgs PaYAbIE . ... e i e ey (8,255,000)
Other post-employment benefits obligation. . .......... .. o (840,327)
Premiums from the issuance ofbonds .. ... i (10,928)
Compensated BDSENCES . . 1ottt e i e s (437,000
Capital fease obligations. .. ... ...t e e {18,486)
Early refirement obligations .. ... ... .o o (7.955)
7T o1 A OO {9,568,706)
Accrued interest payable is not due in the current period and therefore is not reported in the
governmental funds statements . .. .. .. ... (166,364}
Nt 28588 (DR A . . ottt et e e e e 31,181,744

See accompanying notes fo the basic financial staiements.



EXHIBIT D
GATEWAY. ONAL SCHOOL

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES N FUND BALANCES
FORTHEYEARENDEDJUNER,2009
State Payments
On-behaf of Other
Debt Teacher Nonmajor Total
General Service Refirement  Govemmental Govemmenta!
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
Revenues:
TOWN A88BSSIIBNTE ..\ v vrses e inrranneentrarienns 10,022,085 - - - 10,022,095
Intergovemmental ..., ..o 6,506,270 - 2,322,864 2817620 11,646,754
IVESIMERE INCOMB . . .vevvveerr e rrasrrarirasrans 43,688 - - 141 43827
Fess andchargesforsenvicas ..., - - - 328,274 326,214
CARET TEVEIUES . .\ et eeevnirecnsnrsisannsencnsns 53,787 - - 45,484 103,271
TOM MEVEIUBS ..o eee v i rernrncnarmnrasenes 16,625,838 - 232884 3193518 2214221
Other financing sources:
Transfers fromthe generalfund . ............. e - - - 57,000 57,000
Transfers fromdebiservicefund ... ..ol 1,035 - - - 1,035
Transfers from other nosmajorfunds. ......... ... e 170,533 - - - 170,533
Tota! other financing SOWCES .. ... .ovvvvinnvvois 171,568 - - 57,000 228 568
Total revenues and other financing SOURES .. ... vvvvven s 16,797 406 - 2,322,864 3250518 22,378,789
Expenditures:
Current:
AGminIStration .. ..ooveriri et 826,939 . - - 826,939
INSIUGHON . . vt v 7512474 - . 2074376 9,586,847
Anciliary school services. . ..o 575,069 - - 474 478 1,048 547
Transportation .. ... 1,539,006 - - - 1,538,006
Maintenance and operalions .. .. ....coovarivaesian s 1,649,522 - - 1,008 1,650,530
Insurance and employee benefits . ..., 2,543,893 - 2,322,864 - 4,868,757
Programs with otherschools ... 1,177,851 - - - 1,477,851
Capital improvements ... 7,363 - - - 7,363
Debt Senvice:
Principal payments associated withbonds ............ 425,000 - - - 425,000
Interest associated with long-fermdebt............... 364,095 - - - 364,095
Interest assoctated with bond anticipation notes .. ... 6,700 - - - 6,700
Total expendities . ... ..oooiiiiiicii 16,627,908 - 2,322,864 2540862 500,635
Other financing uses:
Transfersto thegeneralfund ... ... - 1,035 - 170,533 171,568
Transfers to nonmajor school raoffund . . ............ .0, 57,000 - - - 57,000
Total other financing uses .. .......oveevnnenns 57,000 1,035 - 170,533 228,568
Total expenditures and other financing uses .. ............. 16,684,909 1,035 2,322 664 2,720,395 21,728,203
Netchanges infund balances ... ........oooonininnsty 112,497 {1,035} - 530,124 641,586
Fund bafance - beginning oftheyear . ...........ooviaen, 1,107,545 14,153 - 483,096
Fund balance -end oftheyear. ... ... 1,220,042 13,118 - 993,150
Reconcliiation of the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
to the statement of activities {Sea footnote 2 for additional information):
Capital outlays netof dapreciaion BXPENSE . ... .o vvrterveriiee e (1,185,181}
Net changes in certain acorued BabIlES . ... ov v ie vt er e {356,228)
Capital lease obligation proceeds and amorfization of BN PRATIUMS . . .....oeeiin i 683
Change in net assefs of the govemment-wide statemant of activities (Exhibit = (899,140

Sea accompanying notes to the basic financial statements,
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GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

GENERAL FURD - STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES i FUND BALANGCE, BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

EXHIBITE

Over/
Criginal Revised {Unden)
Budget Budget Aclual Budget
Revenues - budgetary basis;
Town assessmenis, :
Blandford ... ..o e e 1,571,608 1,571,608 1,671,808 -
L= 1,563,312 1,663,372 1,863,372 -
HUnBRBON . . .o e 2,187,948 2,187,948 2,187,848 -
Middlefield .. ..o e 553,235 583,235 553,235 -
Montgomeny . ..o s 978,012 979,012 979,012 -
RUSSEN . .o e 1,711,746 1,114,746 1,711,746
Worthinglon . .. ... e e 1,456,175 1,455,175 1,455,175 -
Tofai town assessments ...l 10,022,095 10,022,085 10,022,085 -
Commonwasith of Massachusetis - state aid:
Chapler 70, ... i 5,086,331 5,986,331 5,356,783 {620,548}
Transportafion . .. ..o e 1,201,726 1,200,726 993,169 {208,657}
Medicaid .. ... ..oooiii e 100,000 180,000 156,318 56,318
Total Commonwealth of Massachuselts - state aid . ... ... .. 7,288,057 7,288,057 6,506,270 {781,787)
Miscellanecus:
Investmentincome . .. ..o . i e 50,000 50,000 43586 (6,314)
10,2 - - 53,787 53,787
Tolal miscellaneots . ..o v s 50,00¢ 50,000 97473 47473
Tofal BVBIHES . 1\ ever et it e e 17,360,152 17,360,152 16,625,838 (734,314}
{ther financing sources:
Transfers from beginning fund balance . ...........oveil 231,250 231,250 231,250 »
Transfers from bufiding construction & renovation fund. . ..., . 5083 5,083 5083
transfers from maturing debt revolving fund. .. ... ol 1,035 1,035 1035 -
Transfers from school cholee revolving fund .. ...l L. 256,000 256,000 138,159 (117,841)
Transfers from head startrevolving fund . . ...l 17,000 17,000 17,000 -
Transfers from parking fess revolvingfund .. ............. .. 12,000 12,000 10,251 (1,709)
Total other financing SOUWCES .. .. ..o v e e 522,358 522,368 462,818 {118,550)
Tetal revenues and other financing sources - budgetary basls ... ... .. 17,882,520 17,882,520 17,02B,656 (853,864)
Expenditures - budgatary basis:
Current:
Adrainistration .. ..., e 823,004 823,004 B26,934 3845
Instrachon .. ..o e e 8,287,718 8,287,718 7512471 (775,247}
Ancillary school seIVITES .. .. e it e 544 337 544,337 575,089 30,732
Transpordalion . ... .. e 1,759,285 1,759,285 1,538,008 (220,279)
Operations and maintenance . .......... e 1,708,278 1,708,27S 1,649,522 {58,757
Fired G008 .. e e 2,786,386 2,786,396 2,643,893 (252,503)
Programs with ofherscheols . .....o..coo el -y 1,103,246 1,103,248 1,177 851 74,605
Totgloumant ... ... e 17,022,356 17,022,355 16,824,751 (1,197,604)
Capltal improvements . ... 7,970 7,370 7,363 )
Debt service:
Principal - construclion and renovation obfigations ........... 425,000 425,000 425500
Interest - construction and renovation obligatiens . ........... 364,085 364,085 354,695
Intexrest - bond anticipation notes .. ... e i 6,700 6,700 6,700 -
Tolaldebtgervice . . .....oooiiii i 746,795 795,795 795,795 -
Totat expendifures - budgefarybasis .. .. ...l 47,825,520 17,625,520 46,627,908 (1,197,641
Other financing uses - transfers fo mofrepairfund ... ..., ...t 57,000 57,000 57,600 -
Tota! expenditures and other financing uses- budgetary basis .. ..., 17,882,620 17,882,520 16,684,809 {1,197,611)
Netchangesiafundbalance . ... ... it - - 343,747 343,747
Reconciiiation of GAAP basis 1o budgetary basis: {See Exhibit D) Transfers From
GAAP Beginning Fund ~ Budgetary
Description Hasis Balanca Basis
Revenues and other fnanciRg SOUMES . . ... vv it 16,797,466 231280 17,028,656
Expentitures and other finanting Uses . .. ...t e 16,684,909 - 16,684,900
Netchangesinfundbatance . ... ... .. i 112,497 231,250 343,747

See accompanying notes fo the basic financial statements.
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EXHIBIT F
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2009

Laptop
Program
Assets:
PO CABR . .o oot v e 54,412
Notes receivable - governmental activities. . .. ............... 2.800
TOE] BSBEIE . v vt et 57,212
Liabiliies - capital lease obligations .. ... ... 61

Net assets - reserved to reduce subsequent year's assessments . . . . 57,151

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.




EXHIBIT G
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2009

Laptop
Program
Operating revenues - charges for sales and services iaptop fees . . .. 28,551
Operating expenses - charges by ancillary suppliers.............. 30,880
Operating 0SS . .. ..ot {2,338)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses).
IferestinoOmE . .. v e e e 1,276
INtETeSt BXPENSE. . .. v vt v e e {1,276}
Total nonoperating revenues (BXpense) .. ... ieaienns -
Changeinnefassets . ......ooveire i {2,338)
Total net assets - beginning of theysar. .............oo e 59,488
Total netassets-endoftheyear. ... ..o 57,151

See accompanylng notes io fhe basic financiai siaiements.
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EXHIBIT H

GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
JUNE 30, 2009

Laptop
Program
Cash flows from operating activifies:
Cash 1ereived oM USEIS . . oo\ttt et cai e ia e sia e ns 61,122
Cashpaid to sUPPlIErs . ... .ooeroena e 30,888
Net cash provided from operating activities . . ............... .. L 30,233
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Principal paid on capital lease obligations . ... (27,500)
Interest paid on capital lease obligations . ... {1,276)
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities .. ............ {28,776)
Cash flows from investing activities - interest received on notes receivable . ...... 1,276
Net decrease in pooted Cash . . . ... vveiuiin e 2,733
Pooled cash - beginning of theyear. .. .......oovv i 51,679
Pooled cash-end of the YEar .. ... oo ivei e 54412
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activifies:
OPErating JOSS . . .\ .t (2.338)
Reconciiing adjustments - decrease in notes receivable . ... ... s 32,571
30,233

Net cash provided by operafing activities .. ...

See accompanying notes to the basic financlal statements.
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EXHIBITI

GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2009
: Private-

Purpose Trust  Agency
Expendable Student
Scholarship Activities

Funds Funds Tolals

Assels

Pooledcash. . ..o viveie i 17,222 59,481 76,703
Liabifities

Duetostudents . .....oovvevnevnnrnnns - 58,481 59,4814

Accountspayable .. ... 18,700 - 16,700

Total liabiffies . .. .....ooveiivi i 16,700 59,481 76,181
Net assets - held in trust for scholarships .. ... .. 522 - 522

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

EXHIBIT J
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
Private-
Purpose Trust
Expendable
Scholarship
Funds
Additions:
DIOMBHOTIS © + v v v s ee e s e e et e et e 14,510
1 A RSP 83
Total A0GIONS . .o v vt it 14,593
Deductions - scholarships . ... ..o 16,700
Change iNRetassels . ... ..oivrrre e {2,101
Net assets - beginning of theyear ... 2,629
Netassels-endoffheyear ... .o 522

See accompanying notes to the basic finandial statements.
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EXHIBIT K

GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting entity

The Gateway Regional School District (the District) is comprised of the Towns of Blandford, Chester, Huntington,
Middlefield, Montgomery, Russell, and Worthington. The District operates under a regional agreement established in
1957, and serves the educational needs of students in grades PreK through 12.

The form of government is an elected seventeen-member school committee, which is responsible for appointing a
Superintendent who is the chief operating official for the District.

The District presently operates six schoot buildings, three of which are owned by the individual Towns and leased, at
$1 each, to the District which pays all operating costs. These three schools are located in the Towns of Blandford,
Russell, and Worthington. The District owns the two elementary schools in Chester and Hunfington, as well as the
middle/nigh school, which is located in the Town of Huntington. The District is responsible for both the operating and

capital costs related to the schools it owns.

The accounting policies of the District conform to generally. accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setfing body
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The following is a summary of the more

significant policies.

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the District and its
component units, entifies for which the District is considered to be financially accountabie. Blended component units,
although legally separate entifies are, in substance, part of the government's operafions and so data from these
units are combined with data of the primary government, Each discretely presented component unit (if any), on the
other hand, is reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize it is legally
separate from the District. Any biended or discretely presented component unit present has a June 30 year-end.
Based upon the foregoing criteria, the District has no component units that would require either blended or discrete

presentation in these basic financial statements.
B. Basis of presentation

Govemment-wide financial statements

The govemment-wide financial statements (ie., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report
information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary govemment and its component units. For the most part,
the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are
supported by assessments and intergovemmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities,
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.
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EXHIBIT K
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Basis of presentation (continued)

Govermment-wide financial statements (confinued)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Assessments and
other items not properly included among program revenues are repotted instead as general revenue,

Separafe financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though tie latter are excluded from the govemment-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds
are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the govermment-wide financial statements.

Fund financial statements

Fund financial statements of the District are organized into funds each of which are considered fo be separate
accounting entiies. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts, which
consfitute its assets, liabifities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures.

Funds are organized as major fund or non-major funds within the govemmental statements because emphasis is
placed on major funds within the govemmental category. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operafing
fund of the District or meets the following criteria:

a Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expendituresfexpenses of that individual governmental or enterprise
fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding element total (assets, liabilties, etc.) for all funds of that
category or type (that is, fotal governmental or fotal enterprise funds), and

b. The same element that met the 10 percent total in (a), is at least 5 percent of the corresponding element
total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

in addition, any other governmental or enterprise fund that the District befieves is particularly important to financial
statement users may be reported as a major fund.
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EXHIBIT K
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Basis of presentation (continued}

Governmental activities

Governmental funds are identified as either general, special revenue, debt service, or capital projects funds based
upon the following guidelines.

General fund — is the general operating fund of the District and is always classified as a major fund. It is used fo
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special revenue funds ~ are used fo account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources {other than major
capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Debt service funds — are used fo account for the accumulaion of resources for, and the payment of, general
long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Capital project funds ~ are used fo account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction
of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds).

Business-type activities

Business-type activities are comprised of proprietary-type enterprise funds or internal service funds. The District has
a laptop program enterprise fund in which laptops are obtained from vendors via capital lease obligations and sold to
-students via notes receivable.

Fiduciary funds (not included in government-wide statements)

Fiduciary funds are identified as either private-purpose trust funds or agency funds based upon the foliowing
guidelines. ,

Private-purpose frust funds ~ are used to account for resources legally held in trust for scholarship payments.

Agency funds ~ are used to account for asseis held by the District as an agent for individuals, private
~ organizations, and/or other governmentat units.




GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

EXHIBIT K

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

B. Basis of presentation (continued)

Maior Funds

The District reports the following as major funds.

e General fund

»  Debt service fund

« State payments on-behalf of teacher retirement fund
« Enterprise fund - laptop program

Nonmajor funds

The District reports the following nonmajor funds.

Special revenue funds:
Al revolving funds
Al federal, state, and other grant funds
Capital project funds:
School roof fund
Schoo! buildings construction and renovation fund

Fiduciary funds
The District reports the following fiduciary funds.
Private-purpose trust funds:
Scholarship frust funds

Agency funds:
Student activities funds
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EXHIBIT K
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
C. Basis of accounting

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
acerual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred or an economic asset used, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and fiabilities resuifing from exchange and exchange-like
transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1988, generally are
followed in both the goverment-wide and proprietary fund financial statements 1o the extent that those standards do
nat conflict with or contradict guidance of the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided including specific member town assessments, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3)
capital grants and contributions. Revenues not classified as program revenues (e.g. general member town
assessments) are presented as general revenues.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, except in the case of debt service, it is the
District's policy to generally use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Fund financiel stafements

Govemmenta! fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabifities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 80 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as

expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

The annual assessments to the Districts member towns for operating and capital costs, state aid to the District
atiributable to the general fund and various inter-governmental revenues attributable to the special revenue or
capital project funds, and interest income as eamed, comprise the significant revenues susceptible to accrual.
Charges for tuifion, contributions, gifts, and other miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenues when received
because they are generally not measurable until actually received.
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EXHIBIT K
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
C. Basis of accounting (continued)

Fund financial statements

State, general and categorical grants and other entitiements are recognized as revenue in the period the District is
enfitied 1o the resources and the amounts are available. Expenditure-driven programs currently reimbursable are
recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and the amounts are available.
Amounts owed to the District which are not available are recorded as receivables and deferred revenue. Amounts
received prior fo the entitiement period are also recorded as deferred revenue.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for expenditure of funds
are recorded in order fo reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed in the governmental funds.
Under generally accepted accounting principles, encumbrances outstanding at year end lapse and are reporied as
reservations of fund batances since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilifies.

The fiduciary fund financial statements and the proprietary-type enterprise fund use the accrual method of
accounting.

Operating income reported in he proprietary-type fund financial statements includes revenues and expenses related
to the primary, continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating revenues for proprietary-type funds are charges
to customers for sales or services. Principal operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or services and
include administrative and depreciation of capital assets expenses (if any). Other revenues and expenses are
classified as non-operating in the financial statements.

D. Measurement focus
The govemment-wide financial statements governmental activiies and business-type activities, and the fiduciary

fund statement activities are presented using the economic resources measturement focus. Under this concept,
revenues and expenses are matched using the accrual basis of accounting.
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EXHIBIT K

GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

D. Measurement focus {continued)

The measurement focus of all governmental funds is the flow of curent financial resources concept. Under this
concept, sources and uses of financial resources, including capital outiays, debt proceeds and debt refirements are
reflected in operations. Resources not available to finance expenditures and commitments of the current period are
recognized as deferred revenue or a reservation of fund equity. Liabilities for claims, judgments, compensated
absences and pension contributions, which will not be currently liquidated using expendable available financial
resources, are included as fiabiliies in the govermment-wide financial statements but are excluded from the
govemmental fund financial statements. The related expenditures are recognized in the governmental fund financial

statements when the liabilities are liquidated. :
E. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity

1. Deposits

Generally, the District's Treasurer is authorized fo invest in the following investments: term deposits or
certificates of deposit, trust companies, national banks, savings banks or banking companies, or obligations
issued or unconditionally guaranteed by the United States government or an agency thereof and having a
maturity from date of purchase of one year or less, with certain other limitations.

2. Receivables and payables

Receivables from other govemments {i.e., the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and its political subdivisions)
are reported as “due from other govemnments”.

3. Inventories and prepaid assets

Inventories, i any, are valued at cost using the first-inffirst-out (FIFO} method. Inventories of govemnmental
funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors, if any, that refiect costs applicable to future accounting periods are recorded as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.




EXHIBIT K
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

E. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity (continued)

4, Capital assets

Government-wide financial statements

Capital assets, which include construction in progress, buildings, machinery and equipment, computers, and
vehicles, are reported in the applicable governmental or business type activiies, if any, columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful fife in excess of two years. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Significant donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the
asset's fife are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements, for which the District has fitle are capitalized as projects are

constructed. Inferest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-fype activifies (if any)

is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the District are depreciated using the straight line method over the foliowing
estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings................. 50
Leasehold improvements . . .. 50
Machinery and equipment....  5-15
Furniture and fixtures . .. .. .. 5-15
Vehicles . ................ 5
Computer equipment....... 3-5

Fund financial statements

In the fund financial statements, fixed assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as capital
outlay expenditures of the govemmental fund upon acquisition. Fixed assets are not capitalized and related
depreciation is not reported in the government fund financial statements. However, fixed assets are capitalized
and relafed depreciation is reported in the proprietary-type fund financial statements if these items are
considered material,
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EXHIBIT K

GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
E. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity (continued)

5. Long-term obligations

in the govemment-wide and proprietary-type financial statements long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as fiabifities. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred
and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of
the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized

over the term of the related debt.

in the fund financial statements govemmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources. Issuance ¢costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

6. Compensated absences

It is the District's policy to permit employees to accumuiate eamed but unused vacation and sick pay benefits.
Al vacation and sick pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide financial statements. A liability for
these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of

employee resignations and retirement.
7. Fund equity

Government-wide financial stafements

Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes,
or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. If
there are significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt atfributable to the
unspent proceeds are not included in the caloulation of invested in capital assets, net of related debt.

Restricted net assets — consists of net assets with constraints pfaced on the use gither by 1) extemal
groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or, 2) law

through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net assets — consists of all other net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or
“invested in capital assets, net of related debt”.




EXHIBIT K
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
E. Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity (continued)
7. Equity (continued)

Fund financial statements

In the fund financial statements, govermmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that are
not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parfies for use for a specific purpose. Any
designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

Descriptions of the various reservations and designations of the District's fund balance accounts, as are follows.

Reserved for inventory - to segregate the portion of fund balance associated with the inventory in the
special revenue funds.

Resarved for debt service - to segregate a portion of fund balance representing net assets to finance the
refirement of debt in future years. The $14,153 fund balance at year-end was generated from premiums
associated with the issuance of bond anticipation notes for the schoo! renovation projects.

Reserved for designated expenditures - to segregate a portion of fund balance representing net assets that
has been authorized for specific projects.

Reserved fo reduce subsequent years' assessments - to segregate a portion of fund balance designated fo
reduce assessments fo member towns in future fiscal years.

8. Economic dependency and use of estimates

The District provides education to the children of the Towns of Blandford, Chester, Hunfington, Middiefield,
Montgomery, Russel, and Worthington. It receives a substantial porfion of its revenues from these towns, as
well as from the Commonwealth of Massachusetfs, and as such, is dependent on the economic environment of
these towns and the Commonwealth.

The preparation of basic financiel statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepled in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the basic financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those
estimates.
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EXHIBIT K
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Expianation of differences between the net changes in fund balances for governmental funds (Exhibit
D) and the change in net assets of the government-wide statement of activities (Exhibit B}

The reconcifiation between net changes in fund balances reported in the governmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances (Exhibit D} and the change in net assets of the govemment-wide
statement of activities (Exhibit B) is explained below.

Net changes in fund balances - tofal governmental funds (ExhibitD) ... ..ot $ 641,586

Amounts reported for govemmential activities in the government-wide statement of activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the government-
wide statement of acfivities, the cost of those assets are allocated over their estimated
usefut fives as depreciation expense. The components of this reconciling item are:

Additions fofixedassets . . ... e 246,798
Depresiation BXPENSE . .. ..ttt e e e e {1,431,980)
0] -7 O P {1,185,181)

Changes in the balance of accrued habiliies from the beginning fo the end of the year in
the government-wide financial stiements that do not affect expenditures in the
governmental funds financial statements. The compaonents of this reconcifing item are:

Payment of principal assoclated with outstanding bonds payable . ........... ... ..., 425,000
Increase in other post-employment benefitobligafion . ... il (840,327)
Increase in compensated absenceaccrual .. .. ... oo i (36,000}
Decrease in early retirement obligationsaccrual ... .. ... ... 7.365
Payment of capital lease obfigations .. ............ oo 82,720
Decreaseininterestpayable accrual. . ... . o i 5,014
OIS L . oottt e e e s {356,228

The issuance of bonds provides current financial resources to governmentat funds,

but has no effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums
when debt is first issued, whereas these amounis are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activiies. The companents of this reconciling item are:

Amortization of premiums associated with the issuance ofbonds .. ........ e 683
Change in net assets of the government-side staternent of activities (ExhibitB) ....................... .. § (899,140
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EXHIBIT K
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

3. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Budgetary information

The annual budget for the general fund is adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. Capital project and certain special revenue funds adopt
project-length and grant-length budgets, respecfively.

The School Committee authorizes capital project funds’ expenditures. Capital appropriations do not fapse until the
purpose for which they are designated is completed. Expenditures in excess of adopted budgets can be made only
upon the authority of a supplemental appropriation or an approved budgetary fransfer.

The District follows these procedures, in establishing the budgetary data for the general fund.

e A proposed annual budget, including capital costs, is prepared by the Superintendent for adoption by the
School Committee. The annual budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

o Public hearings are conducted in the District to obtain taxpayer comments from the member towns.

e In accordance with the District Agreement, the School Committee adopts a final budget no later than 45
days prior to the earliest scheduled town meeting, but no later than March 15.

e The final budget, divided between operafing costs and capital costs, is then apportioned among the
member towns based upon state mandated minimum contribution requirements and various student
eproliment data. The apportioned amount for each member town must be certified by the District's
Treasurer fo each of the Treasurers of the member towns within 30 days from the date on which the annual
budget was adopted by the School Committee.

e Each member town inciudes its share of the regional school assessment with all other proposed
appropriations for town meeting approval.

o The legal level of budgetary control (ie, the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed
appropriations) is the tofal annual budget.

Assessmenis are levied annually against the seven member towns of the District for the fiscal year beginning July 1,
and are due and payable in four installments by August 1, November 1, February 1, and April 1 for 20%, 30%, 20%
and 30%, respectively.

Capital costs, as defined in the District's Regional Agreement, generally relate to costs incured to construct or
improve school plant operations. If debt was incurred to pay for these costs, capital costs will include payment for
principal and interest on such debt. Debt and capital costs are assessed to member towns based on their student
enroliment as of March 1% of the preceding fiscal year.
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EXHIBIT K
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

3. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (continued)

A. Budgetary information {continued)

Operating costs include all other expenses not listed as capital costs, as well as interest on temporary notes issued
by the District in anticipation of revenue. Current year's operating costs are apportioned to member towns on the
basis of their student enrofiment as of March 1%t of the preceding fiscal year, in conjunction with the minimum
contribution requirement dictated by the Education Reform Act.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments are recorded in order to
reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an extension of the formal budgetary process.

Encumbrances outstanding at year-end represent the estimated amount of expenditures ultimately to result if
outstanding purchase orders at year-end are filled and if confracts in progress at year-end are completed. For GAAP
purposes, encumbrances outstanding at year-end do not constitute expenditures or fiabifiies and, therefore, are
presented in the combined financial statements as a component of fund equity - reserved for encumbrances. As of
June 30, 2009 the general fund had no outstanding encumbrances.

B. Excess of expenditures over appropriations

During the current fiscal year, the District's total general fund expenditures did not exceed appropriations.

C. Deficit fund equity

As of June 30, 2009, the School Roof Repair Fund (a nonmajor govemmental fund had a deficit balance of
$114,000. This deficit fund balance results from the accounting convention of recognizing revenue associated with
debt only upon the issuance of permanent financing. As of June 30, 2009, bond anticipation notes (temporary debf)
of $114,000 have been issued to finance the roof repair project. This deficit should be efiminated in subsequent

years with financing from the general fund.
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EXHIBITK
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS
A. Pooled cash and bank deposits
The District has a central treasury function controlled by the District's Treasurer. Therefore, there is one “pool® of
cash, composed of various bank accounts (rather than separate cash accounts for each fund). Each fund reports the
amount due from or to the central treasury as “pooled cash”.
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of failure of a depository financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The District has no formal policy to limit custodial risk.
The amount of bank deposits reported as “pooled cash” is summarized below.

Exhibit C ExhibitF  Exhibit!
Governmental  Enferprise  Fiduciary

Funds Fund Funds Totals
nstred (FDIC) .. ..o oo $ 115331 § 54412 § 80257 § 250,000
Collaterized . ...t e 810,506 - - 810,506
investments with Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust . . . 2,325,150 - 2,325,156
Total deposits and cash equivalents in instituions . .......... 3,250,993 54,412 80,257 3,385,662
Various reconciing fflems . ... ... ..ot (901,746) - {3,554}  {905,300)

Totaicash......ooviiii e $§ 2349247 § 54412 § 76,703 § 2,480,362
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EXHIBIT K

GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {continued)
B. Receivabies
Receivables as of year-end are reported in the District's financial statements as follows.

Exhibit F Exhibit C Exhibit A
Fund Financial Statements  Govemnment

Other Wide
Enterprise  Nonmajor Financial

Description Fund Funds Statements

intergovernmental receivables:
Circuit breaker - state department of education. ............... $ - $ 76555 & 76555
Teaching American history - federal department of education ... .. - 36,221 36,221
Community partnership - state department of education ......... - 33,445 33,445
Food services fund - state department of education . . ........... - 15,401 15,401
Schoot to work - cityof Westfield .. ... - 350 350
Total - intergovernmental receivables. . . .................0. $ - $ 181,972 § 161,972
Current notes receivable - governmental activities . ................ $ 2800 $ - % 2,800
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GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

EXHIBIT K

4, DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

C. Capital Assets

Asset recognition

The District's capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2009 was as follows.

Begihning Ending
Description Balance Increase Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
LA e $ 17,250 - 17,250
Capital assets, being depreciated:
BUIHINGS . . oo e 38,741,947 - 38,741,847
leasehold improvements . ........ ... o it 7,957,044 7,957,044
COMPUEBES. . ..o e 1,811,034 217,395 2,028,429
Machineryandequipment ...l 225479 28,404 254,883
Fumitureandfidtures .. ......... oot 2,178,640 - 2,178,640
VNGBS . .o e e 82,044 - 82,044
Totat capital assets, being depreciated: 50,996,188 246,799 51,242 987
Total capital assets, gross .. ... 51,013,438 245,798 51,260,237
Less accumulated depreciation for:
BUlINgS .. o {6,639,475) (774,839) {7.414,314)
teasehold improvements ... ... ...l (716,134) (159,141) (875,275)
COMPUIBES, .. ..ot (1,621,493) {227,083) (1,848,576}
Machinery andegquipment . ... ... .ol {173,539) (36,481) {210,020}
Fumitureandfixtures . ... ool (1,831,755) {220,776) (2,152,531)
VEhIEIBS . .. {54,357} {13,660} (68,017)
Total accumutated depreciation . ... .......... ... {(11,136,753)  (1,431,880) {12.568,733)
Totalcapifdassets, net. ... .. ..o $ 30876685 § (1,185181) § 38,691,504
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GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

EXHIBIT K

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

C. Capital Assets (continued)

Depreciation expense was charged fo functions | programs of the District as follows.

Description Balance
Administration . .. ... ..ot $ 46,119
IRStrUCHON . . o o 371,205
Ancillary school services .. ......... L 10,598
Maintenance and operations ........... 20,801
Sublotal . ..o 448,724
Unallocated . ..........covvvviinnns 083,256
Total depreciation expense . ........... $ 1,431,980

D. Interfund transfers

Generally, interfund transfers result from the adoption of the annual budget appropriation to finance specific
operations or o reserve assets for specific purposes in future years. The composition of interfund fransfers for the

fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, is as follow:
Transfers In To The:

General  Roof Repair

Transfers Out Of The: Fund Fund

Nonmaijor Special Revenue Funds:
Schoot choice revolving ... ... $ 138,159 § -
Head startrevolving............c....oovts 17,000 -
Parking feesrevolving . . .. .......... e 10,291 -
Subtotals . . ... e 165,450 -
Buildings construction and renovations fund . .. .. 5,083 -
Subtotals . .. .v e e 170,633 -
Debtservicefund . .............. it 1,035 -
Generalfund . .. ... . i - 57,000
TOtAIS . e et $ 171568 $ 57,000
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EXHIBIT K
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

4, DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {continued)
E. Short-term debt
A schedule of changes to bond anticipation notes for the year ended June 30, 2009 is presented below.
| Dafe  Malurity inferest Bafance Balance interest

issued  Date Rate June 3008  Addiions  Reductions  Jun3009 Expense
Capital Project Funds:

Roof repair . 07/20/07 07/18/08 304% § 171000 § - § ATB00 % - % B700
Roof repair . 07/19/08 0711808 2.44% - 114,000 - 114,000 -
TOMEIS o e s $ 171,000 $ 114000 § 171,000 § 114000 § 6,700

F. Long-serm debt

Chanages in long-term liabilities — governmental activities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2009, was as follows:

FY 200%

Beginning Ending Due Within Due After Interest

Description Balance Additions  Reductions Batance One Yaar One Year Expense
Bonds payable ............. $ B680,000 § . § 425000 $ B255000 § 440000 & 7815000 § 354,095
Compensated absences . ..... 461,187 73,238 60,187 474,238 37,238 437,000 -
Capital leage obligations . ... 88,177 - 80,481 15,696 7,024 8,572 4,881
Notes payable lapiop program . 5,038 - 2,238 2,800 2,800 - 1,276
Early refirement fiability . . . .. .. 15,320 - 7,365 7,855 7,955 - 1,226
Unamortized bond premium ., . 11,641 ~ 683 10,828 683 10,245 -
Total long-term liabilities .. ... T 0080338 § 73238 $ 575955 $ 8766617 $ 495700 § 8270917 $ 371,288

As in prior years, the general operating fund's assets were used in fiscal 2009 to pay current compensated absence,
capiial lease obligations, and eary refirement liabilifies.

The District has a lease agreement fo finance the acquisition of computers & copiers, and a lease agreement fo
finance the purchase of a fruck. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes (fitle
transfers at the end of the lease term) and, therefore, have been recorded as liabilities at the present value of the
future minimum lease payments. The acquisition cost of the computers & copiers, and the truck, $297,418 and
$62,649, respectively, have been capitalized as fixed assets and are being depreciated over their useful life.
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EXHIBIT K
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

4, DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)

F. Long-term debt (continued)

Debt service payments — governmental activities

The following is a schedule of long-term debt maturities associated with the bonds payable as of June 30, 2008.

Fiscal Year  Principal interest Total

2010....... $ 440000 $ 350110 § 790,110
2004, 450,000 334,738 784,738
ao02...... 460,000 319,040 779,040
2M3.... ... 475,000 301,997 776,997
2014, ...... 485,000 283,324 768,324
20M5....... 500,000 258,944 758,944
20M6....... 515,000 233,781 748,781
2017....... 525,000 207,925 732,925
2018....... 540,000 181,375 721,375
2019....... 555,000 158,875 713,875
2020....... 505,000 137,425 642,425
20M..... 525,000 117,225 642,225
2022....... 540,000 86,225 636,225
2023....... 560,000 73,950 633,950
2024....... 580,000 50,150 630,150
2025....... 600,000 25,500 625,500
Total....... $ 8255000 § 3,130,584 § 11,385,584

The following is a schedute of long-term debt maturities associated with capital lease obligations, notes payable, and

early retirement liabilities as of June 30, 2009

Capital Lease Obligations Notes Payable to Laptop
Payabie to Vendors Program Enterprise Fund Early Refirement Liabilities
Fiscal Year  Principal  Inferest Total Principal  Interest Total Principal  Inferest Total
2010....... $ 7024 $ 654 § 7878 § 2800 $ 180 $ 2980 $ 7955 § 636 § 85091
011...... 6,877 388 7,265 - . - - - -
20M2...... 1,785 gl 1,816 - - - - - -
Total....... ¢ 15606 $ 1,63 $ 16959 § 2800 $ 180 $ 2980 § 7955 § 636 § 859

The hond premium of $13,660, incurred in fiscal year 2005 associated with the issuance of $9,000,000 of bonds, is
being amortized on a straight-fine basis over a 20 year period ending in fiscal year 2025. The annual amortization is
$683, and the unamortized bond premium at year-end is $10,928.
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_ EXHIBIT K
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

4. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued}

F. Long-term debt (continued)

Business-type acivities

The District has several lease agreements fo finance the acquisiion of laptop computers which are then sold o
students and teachers through a lease purchase agreement. The District's lease agreements with computer vendors
qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes (title transfers at the end of the lease term) and, therefore, have
been recorded as liabilities at the present value of the future minimum lease paymenis. The District's general fund
subsidizes a portion of the student's lease purchase payments for those students who qualify as “low-income”. See
footnote 4B for details associated with the notes receivable from the District's governmental-activities statements,

Long-term fiability activity associated with the capital lease obligations for the year ended June 30, 2009, was as
follows: _

FY 2008

Beginning Ending Dug Within Due After interest

Description Balance Additions  Reductions Balance One Year One Year Expsnse
Capitaf lease obfigafions .. § 275661 § -5 27E00 % 6t § . 61 § - $ 1,276

G, Net assets

The District has the following net restricted assets reported in its govemment-wide statement of net assefs
associated with governmental activities.

Description Amount
Specific grant or project purposes . ......... $ 1,103,894
nventory . ... 5,446
Total .o $ 1,109,340
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EXHIBIT K
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

4, DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED)
G. Net assets (continued)

A reconcifiation between restricted net assets in the government-wide statement of net assets (Exhibit A) and the
governmental funds balance sheet (Exhibit C) is presented below.

Exhibit C Net Assets (Exhibit A)
Invested in _
capital assets
Fund net of
Balances related debt  Restricted  Unrestricted
General fund:
Unreserved-available for appropriaion. ........... $ 866807 $ -3 - $ 866,807
Reserved for:
Reduce subsequent years' assessments. .. ... . 353,236 - - 363,235
Debt service fund:
Reserved fordebsenvice........... ... et 13,118 - 13,118 -
Other nonmajor funds:
Reserved for:
Iventory. .. ....oooviii 5,446 - 5446 -
Reduce subsequent years' assessments. ....... 142,845 - 142,849 -
Expendifures. . . ... 844,855 - 844,855 -
Sublofals . ... 2,226.310 - 1,006,268 1,220,042
Adjustments required by GASB #34:
Capitalassets . .............oiiiiiiinnns. - 38,691,504 -

Outstanding bans associated with capital assets . . .. (114,000) 114,000 -

Quistanding bonds assaciated with capital assets . . . - {8,255,000) - -
Qutstanding lease obligations associated

withcapitalassets. .. .............co i - {15,698) - -
Other post-empioyment benefits obligation. .. .. ... - Lo - (840,327)
Compensated absences ................ ... . - - (437,000)
Capital lease obligafiens . ...................... - - - (2,800)
Early refirementiability . . ...................0. - - - (7,958)
Unamortized bond premium . ............c.ooel - - (10,928) -
Accruedinterest. . ... - - - {166,364)

Totah v e $ 2226310 $ 30,306,808 $ 1,109,340 § (234404
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EXHIBIT K
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

5. OTHER INFORMATION

A. Risk management

Hampshire County Health Group

The District, along with fifty-five other governmental entities from the neighboring geographic area, is a member of
the Hampshire County Health Group (*HCHG"), a public enfity risk pool, currently operafing as a common risk
sharing management and health insurance program for eligible active and former employees of these fifty-six
members.

Payment, in the form of insurance premiums, is made monthly to HCHG. These payments are funded in part from
the District {recorded as expenditures in the general fund), and payroll withholdings from active employees, or direct
payments from retired and certain eligible former employees. The District pays between 70% and 80% of the cost of
insurance for active employees. Refired and other past employees who may be eligible fo participate in the plan
must pay 50% of their premium cost,

The District makes payments to HCHG in the form of monthly premiums based upon actual employee enroliment.
HCHG makes payment, through a third party administrator for actual health claims incurred for the entire group. At
the end of HCHG's fiscal year, the Group's insurance consultant will determine if assets are sufficient to meet the
iabilities of the Group on an accrual basis and premium rates are adjusted to meet the anticipated needs of the
ensuing year. It is anticipated that if claim liabilities exceed assets, premium rates will be adjusted prospectively to
recover the necessary assets to meet claims

Based upon the unaudited results of eperations of HCHG for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 the District's
insurance consultants have reported that HCHG has an accumuiated surplus of approximately $11,326,732 through
March 31, 2008.

Commercial Liability insurance

The District is exposed to various risks of loss refating to torts; theft or damage of, and destruction of assefs; errors

and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District has obtained a variety of commercial
fiabifity insurance policies which passes the risk of loss listed above o independent third parties. Settlement claims
resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.
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EXHIBIT K
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

5. OTHER INFORMATION {continued)

B. Contingent liabilities

Amounts received or recelvable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjusiment by grantor agencies,
principally the federal and state governments. Any disaliowed claims, including amounts already coflected, may
constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the
grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the District expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

There are no suifs or ctaims pending against the District which, individually or in the aggregate is believed by
counsel to be likely to result in a judgment or judgments that would materially affect the District's financial position.

C. Employee retirement systems and pension plans

Pensions for employees other than school department teaching staff are provided through a contributory refirement
system under the Massachusetis Contributory Retirement Law, which is govemed by Chapter 32 of the
Massachusets General Laws. Both employer and employee contributions are actuarially determined as direcied by
the State Division of Insurance. Required confribution rates for employees range from 5% to 9% of wages based
upon their date of hire with an additional 2% contribution applied to wages in excess of $30,000 for employees hired
after December 31, 1978 and before June 30, 2001, In general, employees hired after June 2001, pay 11%. For
fiscal 2009 the System required the District to pay a confribution rate equal to 3.19% of all required employer
contributions compared to 3.27% for fiscal 2008 and 3.08% for fiscal 2007. Payments for the School District's share
of pension costs were $376,034, $369,232, and $329,724 for fiscal years 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.

The Hampshire County Retirement System administers this defined benefit, muit-employer plan that provides
retirement, survivor, disability and accident benefits. The Plan issues stand alone financial statements, which can be
obtained by writing the Hampshire County Retirement System, Court House, 99 Main Street, Northampton,

Massachusetts 01060.

School Department teaching staff contributes to the Massachusetts Teachers' Retirement System administered by
the Massachusetts Teachers Retirement Board. The District's only contributions to this plan are through deductions
from certain federal grants; however, the State contributed $2,322,864 into the System for the benefit of the District's
employees. The District reports these “on-behalf” payments as both revenues and expenditures in a special revenue

revolving fund.

Both retirement systems are contributory, multi-employer, defined benefit plans. Membership in the plans is
mandatory immediately upon the commencement of employment for ali permanent full-ime employees.
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EXHIBIT K
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

5. OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
D. Other post employment benefits
The District prospectively adopted and implemented GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting
by Employers for Post Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions, required for fiscal periods beginning after
December 15, 2007, in fiscal 2009. This statement addresses how governments should account for and report their
costs and obligations related to post employment healthcare and other nonpension benefits.
Plan_Description. The District participates in a defined benefit retiree medical insurance plan. The District
contributes 1o a cost-sharing mulfiple-employer defined benefit healthcare plan for eligible retired employees. The
plan is administered by the Hampshire County Health Group ("HCHG"). This plan is subject to the provisions of
Massachusetts General Law Chapter 32B, Sections 9A, 9D, and 10 with eligibility requirements conditional by the
District's schoo! committee. This plan does issue stand alone financial statements.

Coverage. Non-Medicare refirees have their choice between network Blue England HMO or Biue Care Elect
Preferred PPO. Medicare eligible refirees must elect Medex.

Eligibility. Retirees are eligible at age 55 with at least 10 years of service,
/Cost Sharing. The refiree is responsible for 50% of the premiums.
Spouse Coverages. Spouses are covered under the plan.

Surviving Spouse Coverage. Surviving spouse pays 100% of the premium.

Annual Premiums. Annual premiums are as follows.

Description Individual  Employee+1 Family
As of April 1, 2009:
Pre 65 Plans:
Blue Care (PPO)... $ 6,768.72 N/A § 18,540.00
Network Blue . ... .. $ 5789.76 $ 1348296 § 16,716.48
As of January 1, 2009:
Post 65 Plans:
Medex........... $ 4,356.00 N/A N/A
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EXHIBIT K
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2000

5. OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
D. Other post employment benefits (continued)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.

Description Amount
Annual Required Contribution (ARC) ............... $ 1,137,685
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation ... ............... -
Adjustmentto ARC.......... ...l .
Annual OPEB Cost (EXpense) . ........covvvven.. 1,137,685
Expected Benefit Payouts {assumed middle of year} . . 297,358
increase in Net OPEB Obligation. ................ 840,327
Net OPEB Obligation - Beginning of the Year. . ... ... -
Net OPEB Obligation-End ofthe Year. ............ § 840,327

Description ~ Amount
Annual OPEB Cost (EXpense) . ............... ... $ 1,137,685
Percentage of Annual OPEB Cost Confributed . .. . ... 26.1%
Net OPEB Obligation- End ofthe Year............. $ 840,327
Covered Payroll .................c..coiiennt. $ 6,974,000
OPEB Cost as a Percentage of Covered Payroll . . ... 16.3%

Funding Status. The funded status of the plan as of July 1, 2008 (the actuarial valuation date) is shown below.

Descripfion Amount
Actuarial Accrued Liabifity (AAL) ................... $ 12,096,102
Actualial Value of PlanAssets ... ................. -
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) .......... 12,096,102
Funded Ratio (Actuarial Value of Plan Assets/AAL) .. ... 0.0%
Covered Payroli (Active Plan Members) . ............. 6,974,000
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroli . ........... 173.4%

Contributions made to the plan are shown below.

Year Annual Actual

Ended Required  Confribufion  Percentage

June 30 Confribution Made Confributed
Y2000  $1,137685 § 207,358 26.14%
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EXHIBIT K

GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

5. OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
D. Other post employment benefits (continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of
reporied amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events info the future, Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost frend. Amounts determined regarding the
funded status of the plans and the annual required contributions of the employees are subject to continual revision
as aciual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Since fiscal
2009 is the first year of implementing the provisions of GASR No. 45 there is no schedule of funding progress
presented as required supplementary information. However, beginning in fiscal 2011, after the next actuarial report
is conducted, a schedule of funding progress will be provided. '

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the pian as understood by
the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and
the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

in the July 1, 2008 actuarial valuation the following methods and assumptions were used.

Description Assumption
Funding InterestRate ................. 4.00%
2008 Medical TrendRate . ... .......... 10.00%
Ultimate TrendRate .. ..........ooens 5.00%
Year Ultimate Trend Rate Reached . .. ... 2013
Actuarial CostMethod .. ............. 0. Entry Age Normal
Amortization Period ... ... o 30 Years
Projected Annual Increase in Payrolf ... ... 2.50%
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EXHIBIT K
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2000

5. OTHER INFORMATION {continued)
D. Other post employment benefits (continued)

Membership in the Plans. Plan memberships consist of the following as of February 1, 2009.

Active Cument

Description Employees  Retirees

Average age at hire:

Males................ 39.2 N/A

Females.............. 36.2 N/A

Totals................ 36.9 N/A
Average service:

Males................ 8.7 NA

Females.............. 12.2 NIA

Totals . ............... 11.4 N/A
Average cument age:

Males................ 47.9 64.0

Females.............. 484 65.6

Totals................ 483 65.0

E. Implementation of new governmental accounting standards board (GASB) pronouncements
During fiscal year 2009 the following GASB pronouncements were implemented.
The GASB issued Statement No. 45. Accounfing and Financial Reporiing by Employers for Postemployment

Benefits Other Than Pension Plans, was implemented in fiscal 2008, See footnote 5D above for this
pronouncement's additional disclosure requirements and impact on the District's basic financial statements.

The GASB issued Statement No. 49. Accounting and Financial Reporting for Poflution Remediation Obligations.
This statement requires governments to recognize obligations to address the current or potential detrimental effects
of existing potlution by participating in poflution remediation activifies such as site assessments and cleanups. This
pronouncement did not have an impact on the Districts basic financial statements.

The GASB issued Statement No. 50. Pension Disclosures, An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 25 and No. 27.
This statement amends applicable note disclosures and required supplemental information requirements of GASB
Statements No. 25 and No. 27 (pension plans) to conform with the requirements of GASB Statements No. 43 and
No.45 regarding other post-employment benefits. This pronouncement did not impact the District's basic financial
statements.

5-27




EXHIBIT K
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICY
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

5. OTHER INFORMATION {continued)

E. Implementation of new governmental accounting standards board (GASB) pronouncements {continued)

The GASB issued Statement No. 52. Land and Other Real Estate Held as Invesiments by Endowments. This
statement amends GASB Statement No. 31 and requires endowments fo report their land and other real estate held
for investment purposes at fair value rather than at historic cost. This pronouncement did not impact the District's
basic financial statements.

The GASB issued Statement No. 55. The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and
Local Governments. This pronouncement fransfers the cument generally accepted accounting principles hierarchy
as set forth in the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ Statement on Auditing Standards No. 69, The

_'Meaning of “Present Fairly in Conformity With Generally Accepted Accounting Principles” in the Independent

Audifor's Report to the GASB authoritative fiterature for state and local govemments. The statement is intended to
improve state and local financial reporting by further centralizing the codification of GAAP into a single authoritative
source. This pronouncement did not impact the District's basic financial statements.

The GASB issued Statement No. 56. Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in the
AICPA Statements on Auditing Standards. The statement guidance addresses three issues -~ related party
transactions, going concern considerations, and subsequent events. For related party transactions, the standard
requires the preparer to consider whether a form-over-substance condition exists. For subseguent events, the
standard requires additional disclosures in the financial statements if certain transactions and events known as fype
one and fype fwo events oceur. If it has been determined that there is substantial doubt about 2 govermnmental
entity's assumption of going concemn, this statement requires substantial note disclosure about the event. Because
no events or issues described in this statement occurred, this pronouncement did not impact the District's basic
financiai statemenis.

Other Future GASB Pronouncements

The GASB issued Statement No. 51. Accounting and Financial Reporting for intangible Assefs, which is required to
be implemented in fiscal 2010. The objective of this statement is to establish accounting and reporting requirements
for infangible assets o reduce inconsistencies that have resulted from an absence of sufficiently specific
authoritative guidance. Govemments possess many different types of assets that may be considered intangible
assefs, including easements, waier rights, timber rights, patents, trademarks, and computer software. Intangible
assets, and more specifically easements, are referred to in the description of capital assets in Statement No. 34,
“Basic Financial Statements — and Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments.”
This reference has created questions as to whether and when intangible assets should be considered capital assets
for financial reporting purposes. An absence of sufficiently specific authoritative guidance that addresses these
questions has resulted in inconsistencies in the accounting and financial reporting of intangible assets among state
and focal governments, particularly in the areas of recognition, initial measurement, and amortization. The objective
of this Statement is to establish accounting and financial reporting requirements for intangible assefs to reduce
these inconsistencies, thereby enhancing the comparability of the accounting and financial reporting of such assets
among state and local governments. The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for
periods beginning after June 15, 2009. Management believes this pronouncement will not impact the basic financial
statements
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EXHIBIT K
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

5. OTHER INFORMATION {continued)
E. Implementation of new governmental accounting standards board (GASB) pronouncements (continued)

The GASB issued Statement No. 53, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments”. This
Statement addresses the recognifion, measurement, and disciosure of information regarding derivative instruments
entered into by state and focal governments. Derivative instruments are often complex financial arrangements used
by governments fo manage specific risks or to make investments. The requirements of this Statement are effective
for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2008. Management does not believe this
pronouncement will have an impact on the basic financial statements.

GASB issued Statement No. 54, “Fund Balance Reporting and Govemmental Fund Type Definifions” issued March
2009. The objective of this Statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer
fund balance classifications that can be more consistently applied and by clarifying the existing governmental fund
type definiions. This Statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily
on the extent fo which a govemment is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of resources reported in
governmental funds. The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal year 2011. Management does not
believe this pronouncement will have a significant impact on the basic financial statements.

(CONCLUDED)
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GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF BALANCE SHEETS

SCHEDULE 1

AS OF JUNE 30, 2009
Totat
Special Capital Nonmajor
Revenue Project  Govemmental
Funds Funds Funds
Assefs
e 1 R )1 P A 939,732 - 939,732
Due from other governments. .. .........oveieiint e 161,972 - 161,972
IVENTONY . .o e e 5,446 - 5448
B - T PP 1,107,150 - 1,107,150
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities - bond anficipationnofes. ... ..o - 114,000 114,000
Fund balances:
Reserved forinventory. . ... o 5,446 - 5446
Reserved for designated expenditures ..............oin 958,855 {114,000) 844,855
Reserved to reduce subsequent year's assessmens. . .......... 142,849 “ 142 849
Total fund balances. . . ........oooiiin 1,107,150 {114,000) 993,150
Total iabilities and fund balances. . .......covii i 1,107,150 - 1,107,150

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SCHEDULE 2

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Total
Special Capital Other
Revenue Project  Governmental
Funds Funds Funds
Revenues:
Intergovemmental. .. ... 2,817,620 - 2,817,620
Investmentincome. .. ... .o i e 141 - 141
Fees and charges forservices . .........ococvinnts 326,274 - 326,274
Other.........ooovis T 48,484 49 484
Total TEVEMUBS, . . it n e 3,193,519 - 3,193,519
Other financing sources - transfers from the general fund . . . - 57,000 57,000
Total revenues and other financing sources. ............. 3,193,519 57,000 3,260,519
" Expenditures:
IS 10 [ori14) 1 T 2,074,376 - 2,074,376
Ancillary school services . ..........o.ooeiiiinn AT4 AT8 - 474 478
Maintenance and operations. . .. ..o iarei e 1,008 - 1,008
Total expenditures. .. ... 2,548 882 - 2,549,862
Other financing uses - transfers to the generatfund . ... . .. 165,450 5,083 170,533
Total expenditures and other financinguses. ............ 2,715,312 5,083 2,720,395
Netchangesinfund balances...............covvoin 478 207 51,817 530,124
Fund balance - beginning of thayear. ... .............. 628,043  {185,917) 463,026
Fund balance-end oftheyear. . .......... ..ot 1107150 (114,000) 983,150

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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SCHEDULE 3
(GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF BALANCE SHEETS

JUNE 30, 2000
Asseis Fund Balances
Due from Reserved Reserved  Reserved for
Pooled Other for foReduce  Designated

Cash  Govermments Inventory Tota inventory Assessments Expendifures  Total

Revolving funds:

Adutteducation .. .......coiiiiiints §73 - - 873 - - 973 973
Abetic. ..o 64,425 - - 64,428 - - 64,420 64,420
Blandford elementary ............... 1,954 . - 1,954 - - 1,954 1,954
Buildingse.......cooviviiiiinn 43,230 - - 43,230 - - 43,230 43230
Chesterelementary..............c00e 4934 - - 4934 . - 4934 4,934
Circuit breaker .. ..o veereeiiiennn. 220,542 76,555 - 308,097 - - 306,007 306,007
Districtdonafion. . .......cooveiians 1,864 - . 1,864 - - 1,964 1,864
Emergency planning ... ....ooovvoenn. 1718 - - 1,718 - . 1,718 1,718
- R 12,063 - - 12,063 - - 12,063 12,063
Foodsemdoe .. ...ooevvrnnvnenniians 16,356 15,401 5,446 37,203 5448 - 31,757 37,203
Friends of gateway ... .....cooveevens 1,282 - - 1,282 - - 1,282 1,282
Ghs losttextbooks . ....cov i ns 758 - - 758 - - 758 758
Ghs vanderbitistudy . ... oL 553 . - 553 - . 553 583
Gms losttextbooks . ............o.a s % - - 20 - . 20 20
Grns vanderbiltstudy ... ... v el a02 - - a0z - - 902 902
Henderson memotial . .........ou 130 - - 138 - - 139 138
High scheol foundation for excefience . .. 2,106 - - 2706 - - 2,706 2,706
Lost fibrarybooks ..o 220 - - 228 - - 220 220
Masca counselor summercamp........ 500 - - 500 - - 500 500
Murrayfield elementary ... ool e 2666 - - 2,666 - - 2,666 2666
Parkingfees . .....oooiniiieann, 2,025 “ - 2025 - - 2,025 2025
201V 11 B UP 1032 - - 1,032 - - 1,032 1,032
Russellelementary .................. 3,249 - - 3,249 - - 3,245 3,249
Schoolcholce ... ...oveevvierininnss 317,630 - - 317,630 - 142,849 174,781 317,630
Student identificaion . ... ..oeieiiinn 7,304 - - 7.304 - - 7,304 7.304
Technology .. ..ovveeeeiiie e, 3,000 - - 3,000 - - 3,000 3,000
L1 SR 29,784 - - 29,784 - - 20,784 23,784
Wellnesscemter . o ..oovvneeeenaninens 37,725 - - 37,725 - . 37725 37,125
Worthington élementary . ........ ... 4071 - - 4071 - - 4,071 4071
Wrap around daycare. .............s 107,108 - - 107,108 - - 07,108 107,108
Federalistate/other arants:
Community parinership fy08. .......... {33,445) 33,445 - . - . - -
Cultwre councit 03, .. .......oooonts, 1,029 - - 1,028 - - 1,028 1,028
Five college study program fy0% .. ... ... 28 - - 26 - - 28 26
Moc creative schoolfy09 ... ... L 1,500 - - 1,500 - - 1,500 1,500
Schooltoworkfy08. .. ...ooviennnnins 1,767 350 - 2117 . - 2117 2117
Spedidea 94-142f008............... 39,104 - - 39,104 - - 30,104 39,104
Teaching American kstory H08...... .. (36,221) 36,221 - - - . - -
TiHeifyd9. ... 23,429 - - 23,429 - - 23,429 23,428
Title V03, .. 1429 - - 1,429 - - 1429 1,425
Title BB A0 . .o vrveeninerenenenes 44,217 - - M . - 4217 M7
s PP 939,732 161,972 5448 1,107,150 5446 142,848 958,855 1,10?,150

See accompanying notes 1o the basic financiat statements.
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GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009 '

SCHEDULE 4

Revenues  Expenditures Net
(See page 6-6 (See page 6-8 Other Changes Fund Balance
and page 67 andpage 69  Financing  inFund June 30, June 30,
for details) for details} Uses Balances 2008 2009
Revolving funds:
Adulteducation .. ...... .o - - 473 973
Ahlefic. . ... e 37,201 - 37,201 27,228 64,428
Blandford elementary .. ... ... 835 118 720 1,234 1,854
Buildinguse ...........oiih e 16,596 1,008 - 15,588 27,642 43,230
Chester elementary . ...........o... . 487 69 398 4536 4,934
Circuithreaker. .. .......ooovvioenen 306,220 178,736 - 127,484 178,613 308,097
Districtdonation . . ..............ovt 408 53 {123} 2,087 1,964
Emergency planning . ........oeeeans 45 395 - {350) 2,068 1,718
120 -1 SR 11,896 - 11,896 167 12,063
FOOd SBIVICE . ..o ve v vnaens 411,512 401,118 10,394 26,808 37,203
Friendsofgateway .............o.0 o 888 - - 888 394 1,282
Head start .. ..ovoeeieevnviiaarnnnn. 17,000 17,000 - - -
Hendeyson memorial .. ...l - 107 - {(107) 246 139
High school foundation for excellence . . . - 200 - (200) 2,908 2,706
High school tost textbooks .. .......... 419 2 - 397 361 758
High school vanderbift. .............. - 197 {197) 750 553
Lostiibrarybooks . ......ocovvniainy 86 24 - 62 158 220
MASCA SUMMEr Camp ... ...vvvrs. . - - 500 500
Middle school fost fexthooks . .......... 2 - - 20 - 20
Middle school vanderbilt ............. - o8 {98) 1,000 802
Murrayfield elementary . ...l 1,962 69 - 1,803 773 2,666
Parkingfees.... ... ..ot 10,603 312 10,291 - 2,025 2,025
Preschool. ..o oo ciiii e aes 1,785 1,860 - (75 7% -
RepyClng .. ...oovvianrnre e 430 - - 430 602 1,032
Russellelementary..........ooviens 628 89 - 550 2,690 3,249
Schoolchoice . .. ... oo viienens 219,975 - 138,158 81,816 235814 317,830
Student identification . ............... ‘ 2,785 - 2,785 4,519 7,304
Technology . ..ooovv v ieaieniinn, 3,000 - - 3,000 - 3,000
TUHON v e 3,233 - - 3,233 26,551 29,784
Wellnesscenter. .............oo0nt, 29,463 5872 - 23,501 14,134 37,725
Worthington elementary . ............. 1,771 519 - 1,252 2819 4,071
Wrap around daycare............... 83,734 - - 63,734 43,374 107,168
Subtotal carriedforward ... ... ... ... 1,142,962 591,321 165450 385191 611,048 897,239
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. {Continued)
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GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

NONMAJOR:SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SCHEDULE 4

Revenues  Expenditures Net
{Seepage 66 (See page 6-B Other Changes Fund Balance
and page 87 and page6-9 Financing  in Fund June 30, June 30,
for details) for details) Uses Balances 2008 2008
Subtotal carriedforward . ............... 1,142,962 591,321 165,450 386,191 611,048 997,239
Federal/statefother grants:
Academic support enhancement fy09 5,000 5,000 - - - -
Academic support 08, . ......... 5,000 5,000 - - - -
Commumnity partnership 08 .. ... .. 177,508 177,608 - - - -
Cultural council 09 . ............ 1,029 - 1,029 - 1,029
Drug free schools fy08 .. .......... 5,078 5,078 - - - -
Fivecollegesfy09............... a00 874 - 26 - 28
Healthfy09 ... ................ 60,000 60,000 - - - -
Mass culfural councit fy09......... 200 200 - - - -
MCC creative schools 09 . ... . ... 7,500 6,000 - 1,500 - 1,500
Potholefy09 . ................... 155,000 155,000 - - - -
Recoveryactfy09............... 629,548 629,548 - - -
Safeschools fy08............... 1,500 1,500 - - -
Schooltowork 08 . ............. 1,500 700 - 800 1,317 2,117
Secondary reading fy08... ... ..... - 2,987 (2,987) 2,987 -
Sped early childhood fy08 . ........ - 1,162 - {1,162) 1,162
Sped early childhood fy08 . ...... .. 13,816 13,816 - - -
Sped idea pl94-1421y08 ... ... e - 12,429 - (12,429 12,429 -
Sped idea plo4-142H09 . ......... 335,884 296,780 - 39,104 - 39,104
Sped program improvement iy09 . . . 4150 4,150 - - -
Summer MCASTY09............. 3419 3,419 - -
Teaching American history fy09. ... 298,073 208,073 - - -
Title IO ... ... 175,182 151,753 23,429 - 23,428
Title Hfy09 . ... ... 61,829 60,400 1,429 - 1,429
Title lBHOS. ... 106,216 64,939 41,277 - 41,277
Title DO . ... 2,225 2,225 - - -
Total ... 3,193,519 2,549,862 165450 478,207 628,943 1,107,150
See accompanying nofes to the basic financial statements. {Continued)
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GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SCHEDULE 4a

Revenues
Fees and Totals
inter- investment  Charges for (See pages
governmental  Income Services Other 6-4 and 6-5)
Revolving funds:
Athletic ... ..o - 37,201 - 37,201
Blandford elementary . ............... - - 835 835
Buildinguse . ..., - 16,596 16,596
Chesterelementary . ................ - - - 487 467
Circuitbreaker . ..............ont 306,220 - - - 306,220
Districtdonation .. ................ .. - 408 408
Emergencyplanning ................. - - - 45 45
= - - S - - - 11,896 11,896
FOOO SEIVICE . ..o vvv e iinnns 250,497 141 160,874 - 411,512
Friendsof gateway . ................. - 888 888
Headstart............ooovnienann, - - 17,000 17,000
High school fost textbooks . ........... - - 419 419
Lostlibrarybooks ................... - 86 86
Middle school lost textbooks .. ........ - 20 20
Murrayfield elementary ............... - - 1,962 1,962
Parkingfees ... - - 10,603 10,603
Preschool . . ..o - 1,785 1,785
Recycling .. .....coovive e innn - - 430 430
Russellelementary . ................. . - - 628 628
Schoolchoice. ............oooiin. 219,975 - - - 219,975
Student identification.. . .............. - - 2,785 - 2,785
Technology ... cvovvevieiiiin e, - - - 3,000 3,000
Taion . .. - 3,233 - 3,233
Wellnesscenter.......... ..., - - 29,463 - 29,463
Worthington elementary .............. - - - 1,771 1,771
Wrap around daycare............... - 63,734 - 63,734
Subtotal caredforward .. ........ ... 776,692 141 326,274 39,855 1,142,962
See accompanying notes o the basic financial statements. {Continued)
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GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOQL DISTRICT

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SCHEDULE 4a

Revenues
Fees and Totals
inter- investment . Charges for (See pages

governmental  Income Services Other 6-4 and 6-5)

Subtotal caredforward . ............... L 776,692 141 326,274 39,855 1,142,962
Federal/state/other grants:

Academic support enhancement fy09 . . . 5,000 - - - 5,000

Academic supportfy09............ ... 5,000 - - - 5,000

Community parinershipfy09........... 177,508 - - - 177,508

Cultural councit fy09 . ................ - - - 1,029 1,028

Drug free schools 09 ............... 5078 - - - 5078

Fivecollegesfy09................... - - - 800 900

Healthfy09..............ooii ot 60,000 - - - 60,000

Mass cultural council fy09 .. .......... - - 200 200

MCC creative schools fy09 .. .......... - - - 7,500 7,500

Potholefy09 ..........ocoovii ot 155,000 - - - 155,000

Recoveryactfy09................... 629,548 - - - 629,548

Safeschoolsfy09................... 1,500 - - - 1,500

Schoolfowork fy08 . ................ 1,500 - - 1,500

Sped early childhood fy09 . ........ . 13,816 - - - 13,816

Sped idea pl94-142f09 .. ............ 335,884 - - - 335,864

Sped program improvement 09 . . ... .. 4,150 - - - 4,150

Summer MCASH09 . ................ 3,419 - - - 3418

Teaching American history y09 ... .. ... 298,073 - - - 298,073

Tillelfy09. ... 175,182 - - - 175,182

Title Hfy09 ... 61,828 - - . 61,829

Title IBHY0O . ...l 106,218 - 106,216

Tille HDHOO . ... 2,225 - - - 2,225

Total ... e 2,817,620 141 326,274 49,484 3,193,519

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. (Continued)
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GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

A L e o e e T

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

SCHEDULE 4b

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008

Expenditures
Ancillary  Mainfenance Totals
Scheol and (See pages
Instruction Services  Operations  6-4 and 6-5)
Revolving funds:
Blandford elementary . ............. - 115 - 115
Buildinguse .. .....oovvriiiainn - - 1,008 1,008
Chesferelementary .. ............. - 88 - 69
Circulitbreaker . .. ...t 178,736 - - §78,736
Pistrictdonation . ... et - 531 - 531
Emergency planaing . . ......c.ooven - 395 - 395
FoodsemviCe . .....ovvviiininnens - 401,118 . 401,118
Henderson memorial . .. ........... - 107 - 107
High schoot foundation for excelience . - 200 - 200
High school lost textbooks . ......... 22 - - 22
High school vanderbitt .. ........... 197 - - 197
Lostiibrary books . ... - 24 - 24
Middie school vanderbilt ........... 98 - - 98
Murrayfield elementary ............. - 89 - 69
Parkingfess .......oovv i - 32 - 312
Preschonl . covv e 1,860 - - 1,860
Russelielementary .. .......oooonn - 69 . 88
Wellnesscenter . ........ooventn - 5,872 - 5872
Worthington elementary ............ - 519 - 519
Sublotal carfiedforward ... ... n 180,913 400,400 1,008 581,321
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. {Continued)
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GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

SCHEDULE 4b

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Expenditures
Ancillary  Maintenance Totals
School and (See pages
instruction Services  Operations  6-4 and 6-5)

Subtotal carriedforward . ............. ... 180,913 409,400 1,008 591,321
Federal/state/other grants;

Academic support enhancement fy08 . . 5,000 - 5,000

Academic supporffy08 ............. 5,000 - - 5,000

Community parinershipfy08......... 177,508 - 177,508

Drug free schools fy08 .. ........... - 5,078 5,078

Fivecollegesfy09 .............. ... 874 - - 874

Health®y0%.................co0 . - 60,000 - 60,000

Mass cultural councitfyd9 ... ....... 200 . - 200

MCC creative schools W09 . ... ...... 6,000 - - 6,000

Potholefy09 . ............... s 155,000 - - 155,000

Recoveryacify09 ................. 629,548 - - 629,548

Safe schools Y09 ... .. .vvreven. .. 1,500 . 1,500

Schooltoworkfy09 . ............... 700 - - 700

Secondary reading y08............ 2,987 - 2,987

Sped early childhood fy08 ........... 1,162 - - 1,162

Sped early childhood 09 . . ......... 13,816 - 13,816

Sped idea pl94-1421y08 ............ 12,429 - 12,429

Sped idea pl94-142fy09............ 296,780 - 296,780

Sped program improvement fy09. .. .. 4,150 - 4,150

Summer MCASTOS .. ............. 3419 - 3419

Teaching American history 09 . ... .. 298,073 - 208,073

Tilelfy08 .. ... 151,753 - - 151,753

TitleWiy08 .. ... 60,400 - - 60,400

Title IBROO . ...l 64,939 - 64,939

Title HDHOS. ... 2,225 - 2,225

Total. ..o 2,074,376 474,478 1,008 2,549,862

See accompanying notes fo the basic financial statements. {Concluded)

6-9



SCHEDULE 5

GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2009

Buildings School
Construction and ~ Roof
Renovations Repairs

Fund Fund Totals
Liabilities - bond anticipation notes payable .. ............ - 114,000 114,000
Fund balance - reserved for designated expenditures . . . ... - (114,000) (114,000

Total fiablities and fund balances . .......... ... .. ..., . - -

See notes o the basic financial statements.

SCHEDULE 6

GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF OTHER FINANCING USES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

Buildinas Scheol
Constructionand  Roof
Rencvations Repalrs

Fund Fund Tatals
Other financing sources - fransfers from the general fund . . . - 57,000 57,000
Other financing uses - transfers to the generalfund ... .. .. 5,083 - 5,083
Netchangesinfundbalance. ........................ {5,083) 57,000 51,917
Fund balance - beginning oftheyear. ............ ... .. 5,083 (171,000} {165,817)
Fund balance-endoftheyear. . ................. ... - (114,000) {114,000)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements,
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SCHEDULE 7
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET ASSETS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2009

Assets Liabilities Net Assets Total
Due fo Held in Liabllities
Pooled Students Accounts Trust for and Net
Cash Groups Payable Total Scholarships Assets
Agency funds:
High school student activities. . . ... .. 49,431 49,431 - 49,431 - 49431
Middle schoo! student activities . .. . .. 10,050 10,050 - 10,050 - 16,060
Totalagency funds ............oovvnes 59,481 59,481 - 56,481 - 59,481
Expendable frust funds:
Carmel schofarship. . ........oov e 14,822 - 14,300 14,300 522 14,822
Champiney scholarship. . .......... 1,400 - 1,400 1,400 - 1,400
Euler memorial scholarship......... 1,000 - 1,000 1,000 - 1,000
Total expendable trustfunds ........... 17,222 - 16,700 16,700 522 17,222
Total fiduciary funds .. ..... ..o oenn 76,703 59,481 186,700 76,181 522 76,703

' See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

SCHEDULE 8
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ADDITIONS, DEDUCTIONS, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
Addifions . Change Net Assels
in Net June 30, June 30,
Donafions Interest  Deduclions Assels 2008 2009

Expendable frust funds:

Carmel scholarship. ... .......oi 14,010 83 14,300 (207) 729 522

Champiney scholarship . ........... - - 1,400 {1,400 1,400 -

Euler memorial scholarship....... .. 500 - 1,000 (500) 500 -

Total expendable frustfunds ... ........ 14,510 83 18,700 {2,107} 2,629 522

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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SCHEDULE 9
GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF TREASURER'S CASH
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009
Bank checking accounts - interest bearing:
United bank - general . ... .....oooverii e {573,080}
United bank - GaIBIEME . . ... v oo 63,076
United bank - student activities . ... ... v 19,576
Tota! bank checking accounts - interestbearing . .. .......ovevioii it {490,428)
Liquid investments:
Massachusetts municipal depository trust-general. ... 2,325,156
United bank - general .. ..... v 584,381
United bank - carmel scholarship ... ..ooo oo 14,348
United bank - student activities .. ... oo e 39,905
Total fiquid INVEStMENt BCCOUNES . .+« ve e e 2,973,790
Total POOIBA CASN . . .+ vcev s st eae e 2,483,362

Pooled cash is presented in the basic financial statements as follows:

GEREIA TUNGL .+ .+ v e ettt e et e e 1,396,397
Dbt SEIVICE FUR. « .+ o e et e e e e e 13,118
Other nonmaijor governmental FUNAS vt e e e 939,732

T e T O R RCER R 2,349,247

Trust and @genCy fUNAS . .. ..o avrne e 76,703
Subtotal - governmental activities . ........... e e 2,425,950
Proprietary activities - [aptop Program. ... .. ..vorrn it 54,412
TOtal POOIEE CASN . -+« v v et eie et 2,480,362

Reconciliation between reported treasurer’s quarterly cash report and financial statement cash:

Total cash per freasurer's quarterly CASRIEPOMT. .. ..o vvveeiie e
Audit adjustment to recognize deposits in transit to student activity band accounts

Total pooled CGash PEI ADOVE . ... .. u.hnterree e

See accompanying notes fo the basic financial statements.
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sy i o STANLEY H. KULAS oy,

skilas0819@aot.com A
Y Windsor, CT 06085
Certified Public Accountant Tel (860) 686-4580

Massachusetts
Tel. (413) 7T48-6175

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Schooi Committee of the
Gateway Regionz! School District:

We have audited the financial statements of the govemmental aciivities, the business-type acfivifies, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the Gateway Regional Schoof District of Massachusetis (the “District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, which colleciively
comprise the Distric!'s basic finantial stalements and have issued our report thereon dated October 28, 2009, We conducted our audit in zccordance
with audifing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the siandards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Autliting Standards, issued by the Compirolier General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District's Internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing
procedures for the pumosed of expressing our opinions on the financial statemenis, but not for the pumpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District's intemal contro! over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do nof express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's
internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internat control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and woudd not necessarily
identify all deficiencies in intemat controt over financiat reporiing that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed
below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider fo be significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing thelr
assigned functions, {0 prevent or detect misstafements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control
deficiencies, that adversely affects the District's abiity to initiate, authorize, record, provess, of report financial data reliably in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote fikelihood that & misstatement of the District's financial statements that is more
than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the District's intemnal confrol, We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs under heading B - Findings - Financial Staternents Audil, “Finding 09-1" to be a significant deficiency in
infernal conirol over financial reporiing.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that resulfs in more than a remote likefihood that a material
misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected by the District's intemal control. Qur consideration of the infernal control over
financiat reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify alt deficiencies in the
internal control that might be significant deficlencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose aft significant deficlencles that are also considered
to be material weaknesses, However, we believe that the significant deficiency described above is not a material weakness,

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Distict's financial statements are free of material misstaternent, we performed tests of its
compliance with cerfain provisions of laws, regulations, confracts and grant agreements, noncomplance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required o be
reported under Government Auditing Stendards.

We noted certain other matters that we have reported fo management of the Disrict in a separate letier dated October 28, 2008,

The Disfrict's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not
audit the District's response and, accordingly, we exprass no opinion on it.

This report is intended for the information of the school commitiee, management and federal awarding agencles and pass-through enfiies and is not
intended fo be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified patties.

Sfan@ H. Kulas, CPA

STANLEY H. KULAS
Certified Public Accountant
October 28, 2008
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE N ACCORDANCE WiTH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the School Commities of the
Gateway Regional School District:

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Gateway Regional School District (the “District”) with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S.
Office of Management and Budget {OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2008. The District's major programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ resulis section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of taws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable fo each of its major federal programs is
the responsibility of the District's management. Our responsibifity is to express an opinion on the District's campliance based on our audil.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circutar A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit io obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We bslieve that our audit provides a
reascnable basis for our opinton, Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the District's compliance with those requirements.

in our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are appiicable to each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2008,

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intemal control over compliance with requirements of iaws,
requlations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s infernal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect an a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's intemal control aver compliance.

A control deficiency in an entity's infemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control does not aliow management or
smployeas, in the normal course of performing their assigned funclions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
faderal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the
entity's ability to administer a federal program such that there is mare than a remote fikelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is more than inconsequentiat will not be prevented or detected by the entity's intemal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that resulis in more than a remote likelihood that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program wili not be prevented or detected by the enfity's intemal control.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and wouid not
necessarily identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies
in Intemal control over compliance that we consider fo be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies, as defined above,

The District's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not
audit the District's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it

This report is infended for the information and use of the school committee, management, fedesal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is
not infended to be and should not be used by anyone ofher than these specified parties.

J’fan@ H, Kulas, CPA

STANLEY H. KULAS
Certified Public Accountant
Qciober 28, 2008

72




GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

The auditors’ report expresses an opinion on the basic financial statements of the Gateway Regional School District which was
unqualified.

One significant deficiency disclosed during the audif of the basic financial statements is reported in the “Report on Compliance and
on Infernal Control Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government
Auditing Standards.” This deficiency is not reported as a material weakness,

No instances of noncompliance material to the basic financial statements of the District were disclosed during the audit.

No significant deficiencies refating to the audit of the major federal award programs are reported in the “Report on Compliance With
Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program & Internal Controt Over Compliance in Accordance With Circular A-133."

The auditors' report on compiiance for the major federal award programs for the District expresses an unqualified opinion.

There were no audit findings refative to the District's federal award major programs.

The programs tested as major programs were:

84.027 Special Education — Grants fo States
84.304 Educafion State Grants ~ Recovery Act

The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000.

As defined by Circutar A-133, the District was determined to be a low risk audifee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

Significant Deficiency

08-1 - Preparation of financial statements based on generally accepted accounting principles {this deficiency had
been noted in the FY08 report)

Condition: As is the case for most schoo! districts and municipalities in Massachusefis, the Disfrict does not prepare its
financial statements. The financial statements are prepared by the accounting firm that conducts the audit of these statements.
Although District management reviews a draft of the financial statements to detect any errors or omissions before the financial
statements are finalized and released, the District does not have qualified personnel to defermine if these financial statements
adhere o the iatest governmental accounting standards.

Background; The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants issued Auditing Standard #112 “Communicating infemal
Confrol Related Matters Identified in the Audit’, which Is effective for fiscal year 2007. This standard requires the auditor to
report on control deficiencies involving the preparation of the financial statements. Specifically it addresses the fact that it is the
District’s, rather than the auditor's, responsibility io prepare financial statements.

Criteria: A system of internal control over financial reporting does not stop at the general ledger. it includes confrols over
financial statement preparation, inciuding footnote disclosure. The fact that the audifor prepares the financial statements may
mean they are correct, but it does not eliminate the confrol deficiency. An audifor cannot be considered part of the clienf's
internal control. Thus, controls over the financial statement preparation function that exist in the auditor's firm cannot be
considered. Only the controls the dlient has in place can be considered in determining whether there is a control deficiency and
its severtty.
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GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

B FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT (Continued)

Significant Deficiencies (Continued)

09-1 - Preparation of financial statements based on generally accepted accounting principles {continued)

Effect Because District personnel are not frained fo prepare the financial statements, including accompanying footnotes,
there is more than a remote likefihood that District personnel, during their review process, would not be able to detect a

significant error or omission in the financial statements.

Recommendation: The District shouid be aware that this conirol deficiency exists, and consider whether it wants i spend the
resources needed fo adequately train its personne! so that they coutld prepare the financial statements or have the financial

statements prepared by a qualified, independent third party.

District's Resbonse: We are aware of this situation and will take the above recommeandation under consideration.

¢ FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None.
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GATEWAY REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF PRIOR YEAR'S FINDINGS AND CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2009

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR'S FINDINGS

There were no findings or questioned costs associated with the audit of major federal award programs for the fiscal
year ended June 36, 2008,

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

The only finding regarding this year's audit is a significant deficiency conceming the preparation of financial
statements,

Please refer fo "Significant Deficiencies 08-1" in Section B of the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
beginning on page 7-3 of this report package for a defailed description of this deficiency along with the Disfrict's
correstive action scenario.
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skufas0019@aci.com .
. . Windsor, CT 06085
Certified Public Accountant Tel (860) 688-4560

Massachusetis
Tel. {413} 748-8175

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON COMPILJANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE WITH MASSACHUSETTS SCHOOL DISTRICTS

To the School Committee of the
Gateway Regional School District:

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Gateway Regional School District {the “District’) with the types of compliance requirements
described in the Massachusetfs Department of Education's 2006 Compliance Supplement applicable to Massachusetts School Districts for
the year ended June 30, 2009, Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to School Districts

is the responsibiiity of the District's management. Our responsibifity is to express an opinion on the District's compliance based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with audifing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable fo financial audits confained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Compirciler General of the United States and the
Massachusetts Department of Education Compiance Supplement. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on Massachuseits School Districts programs oceurred. An audit includes examining, on & test basis, evidence about the
District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
\We believe fhat our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our firm does not provide a legal determination on the District's

compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with fhe requirements referred to apove that are appkicable o Massachusets
School Districts for the year ended June 30, 2008.

internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the District is responsible for establishing and mainfaining effective internal control over compiiance with requirements
of laws, regulations, contact, and grants applicable fo Massachusetts School Districts. in planning and performing our audit, we considered
the District's internal confrof over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on its ability to accurately
report year-end information in accordance with Massachusetts DOE requirements in order to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of sxpressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance.

Our consideration of the inferal contro} over compliance would not necessarily disclose afl matiers in the intemal control that might be
material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design of operation of one or more of the internal control
components does not reduce to relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and granis fhat would be material in relation io a major program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the norma! course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the infernal control over
compliance and its opesation that we consider to be matetial weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the school committee, management, state funding agencies, and the
Massachusetts Deparimen of Education and is not intended o be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Sfan@ U Kulps, CPA

STANLEY H. KULAS
Certified Public Actountani
October 28, 2008
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REPORT TO MANAGEMENT

To the School Committee of the
Gateway Regional School District:

In planning and performing eur audit of the basic financial statements of the Gateway Regional School District of the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts (the "District”) for the year ended June 30, 2009, we considered its internal control
structure in order to defermine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the basic
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the intemal control structure.

Our consideration of the intemal control structure would not necessarily disclose afl matters in the intemal control
structure that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant
deficiencies that are also considered to be material weaknesses. We have issued a separate report on significant
deficiencies dated October 28, 2008, which is included in this reporting package.

As a result of our audit of the basic financial statements, we noted certain other matters, not considered fo be
significant deficiencies, which are listed below.

Current Year's Comment;

Student Activity Check Request Form Approval
Prior Year's Comment:

Longevity Payroll Expenditures

This report is intended for the information of the school commitiee, management and federal awarding agencies and
pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We will be pleased to discuss these recommendations with you and to assist you in implementing them.

Sincerely,

\S’fan@ H. Kulas, CPA

STANLEY H. KULAS
Certified Public Accountant
October 28, 2009



L CURRENT YEAR'S COMMENT ]

STUDENT ACTIVITY CHECK REQUEST FORM APPROVAL

Fiscal 2009 Observation: District policy requires the school principal fo approve all student activity check request
forms by signing them. There were instances noted where the principal approved her own check request forms. This
circumvents the control procedure because the same person that authorizes the form is also approving it

Fiscal 2009 Recommendation: In instances where the student activity check request form is prepared by the school
principal, the District's superintendent or business manager should be required to approve the request by signing the

form instead of the principal.

r PRIOR YEAR'S COMMENT B

LONGEVITY PAYROLL EXPENDITURES

Fiscal 2008 Observation: We noted that $1,250 of longevily expenses associated with special education teachers
were erroneously reported in the regular teacher expenditure account for the Littleville elementary schoot. For both
budgetary and state end of year reporting purposes it is essential that special education costs are segregated from

regular education expenses.

Fiscal 2008 Recommendation: The District should periodically reconciie general ledger payroll expenditure
accounts to individual personnel salary contracts fo ensure that these accounts incorporate the proper payrol

expenditures by program type.

Fiscal 2009 Status: We noted one instance where $1,500 of longevity expenses associated with a special education
teacher was erroneously reported in the regular teacher expenditure account for the high school.




